
 

 

 

 

 

TOWN OF CARTHAGE 

PLANNING BOARD 

October 3rd, 2024 

6:00 P.M. 

 

AGENDA 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. INVOCATION 

 

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA - Members of the board may remove or add items to the agenda 

prior to commencing the meeting. Motions/votes are not required to approve the agenda but there 

must be unanimous consent before proceeding. 

 

5. CONSENT AGENDA - All items listed below are considered routine and will be enacted by one 

motion. No separate discussion will be held except on request of a member of the Planning Board 

to remove an item from the consent agenda and place it on the regular agenda. 

 

a. Approval of minutes from September 5th, 2024, Regular Meeting Minutes.  

 

6. PUBLIC COMMENT - Members of the public may use this time to address the Planning Board 

with any presentations, questions or concerns. Those who wish to speak should fill out the sign-

up sheet in the building’s entryway to be recognized during the public comment session or raise 

their hand and wait to be recognized by the presiding member. All public comment made as part 

of a public hearing should be withheld until the public hearing has begun and the floor is given to 

public comments. No public comment will be had outside of this public comment session or a 

public hearing unless otherwise permitted by the members of the board. The chairperson may 

place time limits on speakers prior to the start of the public comment session. 

 

7. OLD BUSINESS 

a. No Old Business. 

 

8. NEW BUSINESS  

a. Recommendation of Drafted Koontz-Jones Design Downtown Revitalization Plan 

b. Conditional Zoning Request at 405 Monroe Street (Parcel ID #00000357) from B-2 to   

B-2 CZ  

c. Approval of 2025 Planning Board Meeting Schedule  

 

9.  OTHER BUSINESS OF THE BOARD 

No other business. 

 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

 

1



 TOWN OF CARTHAGE  

PLANNING BOARD  

MEETING MINUTES 

September 5th, 2024 

Attendance: Bill Smyth, Elizabeth Futrell, Victoria Riddle and Ian Lumgair. 

Absent: Antoniette Kelly and David Norris 

1. CALL TO ORDER  

a. Elizabeth Futrell called the meeting to order at 6:07 p.m.  

2. IVOCATION  

a. Victoria Riddle gave the invocation.  

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA  

a. Elizabeth Futrell made a motion to approve the agenda as presented. All ayes. 

Motion passes 4-0.  

5. CONSENT AGENDA  

a. Elizabeth Futrell made a motion to accept the Consent Agenda with the approval 

of the August 1, 2024, Regular Meeting Minutes. All ayes, motion passes 4-0.  

6. PUBLIC COMMENT  

a. There was no public comment made at this time.   

7. OLD BUSINESS  

a. No old business. 

8. NEW BUSINESS  

a. McNeill Ridge Conditional Zoning Amendment Request for Project CZ-05-23 

Ms. Jennifer Hunt gave the history of the original Conditional Zoning request 

approved on September 18th, 2023. The amendments were brought due to some 

wetlands found on the property and with the elimination of some single-family units. 

The proposed conditions included: (1) 59 single-family units (from 78 single-family 

units), (2) The developer will only mass grade for infrastructure, homes, and 

stormwater management as necessary to ensure positive drainage for the subdivision. 

Mass grading of other areas of the subdivision will not be allowed, (3) clarifying 

2



language of buffers on the preliminary plat, (4) roadway typical cross-section of 28’ 

back-to-back as depicted on the preliminary plat which includes two 12’ lanes with 2’ 

rolled (valley) concrete curbing on each side, and (5) lots shall have a minimum of 

30’long by 20’ wide concrete driveway from the property line to the house with 

exception of corner lots that may be allowed 15’ long by 20’ wide concrete driveways 

depending on the home orientation with the driveways extending from property line 

to back of curb. 

There were some comments from the Planning Board and the public about the 

wetlands and how that would affect the building of the homes. Particularly the homes 

that are labeled #37-42 on the preliminary plat. Engineer, Phillip Picerno addressed 

the comments and questions during this time.  

Ian Lumgair made a motion to recommend approval for the map amendment 

with Goals 2, 3, 6, and 11 of the adopted Land Use Plan. Victoria Riddle seconded 

the motion. All ayes. Motion passes 4-0.  

Bill Smyth made a motion to recommend approval to the Board of 

Commissioners of the Conditional Zoning Amendments for project CZ-05-23. Ian 

Lumgair seconded the motion. All ayes. Motion passes 4-0.  

9. OTHER BUSINESS OF THE BOARD  

a. Planning Board, Ian Lumgair, mentioned the Historical Preservation Commission 

and how could the Planning Board assist with architectural standards. Town 

Planner, Jennifer Hunt, stated that per the Unified Development Ordinance, there 

are only certain architectural standards that can be placed on properties which are 

limited to Commercial properties. Within North Carolina, the Unified 

Development Ordinance cannot regulate what architectural standards a residential 

home may have.  

10. ADJOURNMENT  

Elizabeth Futrell motioned to adjourn the meeting. Bill Smyth seconded the motion. All 

ayes. Motion passes 4-0. Meeting adjourned at 6:36 p.m.  

 

 

 

3



          Town of Carthage 

    Planning Board 

MEMORANDUM  

 
Date:  October 3, 2024 
 
To:   Planning Board 
 
From:    Jennifer Hunt, Town Planner 
 

Subject: Final Downtown Revitalization Plan Booklet 

              
 

I. SUMMARY OF APPLICATION REQUEST: 

The Downtown Revitalization Plan is complete with the final booklet. It is ready for adoption based 
on the two community input meetings, the online surveys and feedback from the past year since 
November 2023. Mr. Bob Koontz with Koontz Jones Design will present the final booklet.  

 
II. PLANNING BOARD ACTION: 

Per Section 100.32 “Planning Board – Powers and Duties” mentioned below the Planning 
Board will recommend either approving or denying the final proposed Downtown 
Revitalization Plan.  
 
Section 100.32: 
In addition to its specific duties set forth in this and other Town Ordinances and policies, the 
Planning Board shall have the following powers and duties: 
1. To make studies of the Town and surrounding areas; 
2. To determine objectives to be sought in the development of the Town; 
3. To propose and recommend plans for achieving these objectives; 
4. To develop and recommend to the Board of Commissions policies, ordinances, 
administrative 
procedures and other means for carrying out plans in a coordinated and efficient manner; 
5. To advise the Board of Commissioners concerning the use and amendment of means for 
carrying out plans; 
6. To exercise such functions in the administration and enforcement of various means for 
carrying 
out plans as may be assigned by this article or other ordinances of the Town; and 
7. To perform other related duties as may be assigned by this article or other ordinances. 
 
I move to: 
OPTION 1 
Approve the Downtown Revitalization Plan as written and presented. 
 
or 
 
OPTION 2 
Deny Downtown Revitalization Plan for the following reasons….. 
 

4



 
TOWN OF CARTHAGE  

PLANNING BOARD 

STATEMENT OF LAND USE PLAN CONSISTENCY  

FOR THE ADOPTION OF THE DOWNTOWN REVITALIZATION PLAN 

 

 

WHEREAS, amendments to the Town of Carthage Unified Development Ordinance have been proposed, 

which amendments are identified as follows:   

 

NOW THEREFORE, the Planning Board of the Town of Carthage resolves as follows: 

 

Section 1. The Planning Board concludes that the above-described amendment(s) are/are not consistent with 

the Town of Carthage 2040 Land Use Plan, as amended based on the following: 

 

Goal 1: Preserve and celebrated small-town community roots. 

Goal 2: Coordinated, intentional, and well-planned growth and development. 

Goal 3: Protection of open space and critical natural features. 

Goal 4: Ample employment opportunities and support for business development. 

Goal 5: Vibrant commercial areas that provide a variety of goods, services, entertainment options, 

and amenities. 

Goal 6: A well-connected multi-modal transportation system. 

Goal 7: High-quality parks and recreational facilities that are accessible to all. 

Goal 8: Protected and preserve historic and cultural resources. 

Goal 9: Adequate supply and high quality of housing. 

Goal 10: Informed, engaged, and active residents that represent a variety of neighborhoods and 

citizen groups.  

Goal 11: Regulations that are consistent with the Town’s vision. 

Goal 12: Cultural, educational, recreational, and other amenities that contribute to the quality of 

life of Carthage’s citizens.  

 

 
 

 Mr. Bob Koontz with Koontz Jones Design has finalized the Downtown Revitalization Plan as presented. 

Finalized plan includes the design concepts that were recommended by the Planning Board and approved 

by the Board of Commissioners.   

 

 

Section 2.  Please state the Planning Board’s reasonings/findings for the approval or disapproval of this 

consistency statement based on the above selected goals. 

              

              

              

              

              

               

 

 

5



 

 

 

Section 2. The Planning Board concludes that the above-described amendment(s) are/are not reasonable 

and in the public interest as they do/do not fulfill a direct objective of the Land Use Plan.     
 

 This statement adopted the    day of _______________, 2024. 

 

        

     

    

 

             

       Elizabeth Futrell, Planning Board Chair 

 

 

 

      

Jamie Sandoval, Clerk to the Planning Board 

 

 

6



T
O

W
N

 O
F

 C
A

R
T

H
A

G
E

 

D
O

W
N

TO
W

N
 M

A
ST

E
R 

PL
A

N
D

O
W

N
TO

W
N

M
A

ST
E

R
PL

A
N

7



1A
C

K
N

O
W

L
E

D
G

M
E

N
T

S

A
PP

O
IN

TE
D

 O
FF

IC
IA

LS
TO

W
N

 S
TA

FF
D

E
SI

G
N

 T
E

A
M

EL
EC

TE
D 

O
FF

IC
IA

LS

JI
M

M
Y 

C
HA

LF
LI

N
C

H
-

M
A

YO
R

JO
HN

 M
C

D
O

N
A

LD
-

M
A

YO
R 

PR
O

 T
EM

A
L 

BA
RB

ER
 

 
 

-
C

O
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
ER

D
A

N
 B

O
N

IL
LO

 
 

-
C

O
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
ER

A
N

TO
N

 S
A

D
O

V
N

IK
O

V
-

C
O

M
M

IS
SI

O
N

ER
BR

EN
T 

TA
N

N
ER

 
 

-
C

O
M

M
IS

SI
O

N
ER

PL
A

N
N

IN
G

 B
O

A
RD

EL
IZ

A
BE

TH
 F

UT
RE

LL
  

-
BO

A
RD

 C
HA

IR
A

N
TO

N
IE

TT
E 

KE
LL

Y 
 

-
BO

A
RD

 M
EM

BE
R

IA
N

 L
UM

G
A

IR
 

 
-

BO
A

RD
 M

EM
BE

R
D

A
V

ID
 N

O
RR

IS
 

 
-

BO
A

RD
 M

EM
BE

R
BI

LL
 S

M
YT

H 
 

 
-

BO
A

RD
 M

EM
BE

R
V

IC
TO

RI
A

 R
ID

D
LE

 
 

-
BO

A
RD

 M
EM

BE
R 

(E
TJ

)

A
PP

EA
RA

N
C

E 
C

O
M

M
ITT

EE

ER
IN

 R
EM

BE
RT

 
 

-
C

O
M

M
ITT

EE
 C

HA
IR

M
A

LC
O

LM
 H

A
LL

 
 

-
C

O
M

M
ITT

EE
 M

EM
BE

R
A

SH
LE

Y 
C

O
A

TE
S 

 
-

C
O

M
M

ITT
EE

 M
EM

BE
R

A
DM

IN
IS

TR
A

TIV
E 

ST
A

FF

EM
IL

Y 
YO

PP
  

 
-

TO
W

N
 M

A
N

A
G

ER
JE

N
N

IF
ER

 H
UN

T 
 

-
TO

W
N

 P
LA

N
N

ER
KI

M
 G

IB
SO

N
  

 
-

TO
W

N
 C

LE
RK

KE
SH

A
 M

A
TT

HE
W

S 
 

-
FI

N
A

N
C

E 
O

FF
IC

ER
A

M
Y 

PE
A

RM
A

N
 

 
-

A
C

C
O

UN
TIN

G
 S

PE
C

IA
LI

ST
JA

M
IE

 S
A

N
D

O
V

A
L 

 
-

M
A

N
A

G
EM

EN
T 

A
N

A
LY

ST
M

A
RI

A
 B

RO
C

K 
 

-
C

US
TO

M
ER

 S
ER

V
IC

E 
SP

EC
IA

LI
ST

KO
O

N
TZ

 J
O

N
ES

 D
ES

IG
N

BO
B 

KO
O

N
TZ

 
 

-
PR

IN
C

IP
A

L
TR

EV
O

R 
HA

N
SE

N
 

 
-

SE
N

IO
R 

A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

D
EV

IN
 M

A
C

FA
RL

A
N

E
-

D
ES

IG
N

 A
SS

O
C

IA
TE

SP
EC

IA
L 

TH
A

N
KS

 T
O

KI
M

LE
YH

O
RN

N
A

TH
A

N
IE

L 
HE

YW
A

RD
-

PR
O

JE
C

T 
M

A
N

A
G

ER

N
C

DO
T

M
A

TT
HE

W
 K

ITC
HE

N
  

-
A

SS
IS

TA
N

T 
D

IV
IS

IO
N

M
A

IN
TE

N
A

N
C

E 
EN

G
IN

EE
R

8



2

T
A

B
L

E
 O

F
 C

O
N

T
E

N
T

S

IN
TR

O
D

U
CT

IO
N

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9

PR
O

JE
CT

 O
V

E
RV

IE
W

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 C
O

N
D

IT
IO

N
S

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 IN

PU
T

D
E

SI
G

N
 P

RO
CE

SS

CA
RT

H
AG

E
 D

O
W

N
TO

W
N

 M
A

ST
E

R 
PL

A
N

FU
RN

IS
H

IN
G

S 
&

 M
A

TE
RI

A
LS

FU
TU

RE
 IM

PR
O

V
E

M
E

N
TS

A
PP

E
N

D
IC

E
S

pp
. 3

-4

pp
. 5

-6

pp
. 7

-8

pp
. 9

-1
2

pp
. 1

3-
14

pp
. 1

5-
24

pp
. 2

5-
28

pp
. 2

9-
30

pp
. 3

2-
56

9



3T
H

E
 T

O
W

N
 O

F
 C

A
R

T
H

A
G

E

H
IS

TO
RY

VA
LU

E
S

M
C

C
O

N
N

EL
L 

M
EM

O
RI

A
L 

&
 C

O
UR

TH
O

US
E

10



4

C
A

R
T

H
A

G
E

 T
O

D
A

Y

O
V

E
RV

IE
W

O
U

R 
CH

A
LL

E
N

G
E

C
A

RT
HA

G
E 

TO
W

N
 L

IM
ITS

C
A

RT
HA

G
E 

TO
W

N
 L

IM
ITS

C
A

RT
HA

G
E 

D
O

W
N

TO
W

N
 A

RE
A

C
A

RT
HA

G
E 

ET
J

C
A

RT
HA

G
E 

ET
J

11



5T
O

W
N

 O
F

 C
A

R
T

H
A

G
E

F
U

T
U

R
E

 G
O

A
L

S

CO
O

RD
IN

A
TE

D
, 

IN
TE

N
TI

O
N

A
L,

 
A

N
D

 
W

E
LL

-P
LA

N
N

E
D

 
G

RO
W

TH
 

A
N

D
 

D
E

V
E

LO
PM

E
N

T

PR
E

SE
RV

E
D

 
A

N
D

 
CE

LE
BR

A
TE

D
 

SM
A

LL
 

TO
W

N
-C

H
A

RM
, 

SC
A

LE
, 

A
N

D
 

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 R

O
O

TS

PR
O

TE
CT

IO
N

 O
F 

O
PE

N
 S

PA
CE

 A
N

D
 C

RI
TI

CA
L 

N
A

TU
RA

L 
FE

AT
U

RE
S

A
M

PL
E

 
E

M
PL

O
Y

M
E

N
T 

O
PP

O
RT

U
N

IT
IE

S 
A

N
D

 
SU

PP
O

RT
 

FO
R 

BU
SI

N
E

SS
 

D
E

V
E

LO
PM

E
N

T

V
IB

RA
N

T 
CO

M
M

E
RC

IA
L 

A
RE

A
S 

TH
AT

 P
RO

V
ID

E
 A

 V
A

RI
E

TY
 O

F 
G

O
O

D
S,

 
SE

RV
IC

E
S,

 E
N

TE
RT

A
IN

M
E

N
T 

O
PT

IO
N

S,
 A

N
D

 A
M

E
N

IT
IE

S

A
 W

E
LL

-C
O

N
N

E
CT

E
D

 M
U

LT
I-

M
O

D
A

L 
TR

A
N

SP
O

RT
AT

IO
N

 S
Y

ST
E

M

H
IG

H
-Q

UA
LI

TY
 

PA
RK

S 
A

N
D

 
RE

CR
E

A
TI

O
N

A
L 

FA
CI

LI
TI

E
S 

TH
AT

 
A

RE
A

 
AC

CE
SS

IB
LE

 T
O

 A
LL

PR
O

TE
CT

E
D

 A
N

D
 P

RE
SE

RV
E

D
 H

IS
TO

RI
C 

A
N

D
 C

U
LT

U
RA

L 
RE

SO
U

RC
E

S

A
D

E
Q

UA
TE

 S
U

PP
LY

 A
N

D
 H

IG
H

 Q
UA

LI
TY

 O
F 

H
O

U
SI

N
G

IN
FO

RM
E

D
, E

N
G

AG
E

D
, A

N
D

 A
CT

IV
E

 R
E

SI
D

E
N

TS
 T

H
AT

 R
E

PR
E

SE
N

T 
A

 V
A

RI
E

TY
 

O
F 

N
E

IG
H

BO
RH

O
O

D
S 

A
N

D
 C

IT
IZ

E
N

 G
RO

U
PS

RE
G

U
LA

TI
O

N
S 

TH
AT

 A
RE

 C
O

N
SI

ST
E

N
T 

W
IT

H
 T

H
E

 T
O

W
N

’S
 V

IS
IO

N

CU
LT

U
RA

L,
 E

D
U

CA
TI

O
N

A
L,

 R
E

CR
E

A
TI

O
N

A
L,

 A
N

D
 O

TH
E

R 
A

M
E

N
IT

IE
S 

TH
AT

 
CO

N
TR

IB
U

TE
 T

O
 T

H
E

 Q
UA

LI
TY

 O
F 

LI
FE

 O
F 

CA
RT

H
AG

E
’S

 C
IT

IZ
E

N
S

FR
O

M
 T

O
W

N
 O

F 
CA

RT
H

AG
E

 2
04

0 
CO

M
PR

E
H

E
N

SI
V

E
 L

A
N

D
 U

SE
 P

LA
N

21 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

12



6

P
R

O
JE

C
T

 O
V

E
R

V
IE

W

PR
O

V
ID

IN
G

 A
 D

O
W

N
TO

W
N

 
M

A
ST

E
R 

PL
A

N

O
BJ

E
CT

IV
E

S

HI
ST

O
RI

C
A

L 
C

O
UR

TH
O

US
E

C
O

UN
TY

 C
O

UR
T 

C
LE

RK

RI
C

K 
RH

YN
E 

PU
BL

IC
 S

A
FE

TY
 C

EN
TE

R

C
A

RT
HA

G
E 

EL
EM

EN
TA

RY
 S

C
HO

O
L

GLENDON CARTHAGE RD

M
O

NRO
E S

T

MCNEILL ST

MCREYNOLDS S
T

13



L
E

G
E

N
D

C
O

M
M

ER
C

IA
L

R
ES

ID
EN

TI
AL

O
FF

IC
E 

R
ES

TA
U

R
AN

T 
/ D

IN
IN

G

C
IV

IC

PU
BL

IC

IN
D

U
ST

R
IA

L

7E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 
C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S
LA

N
D

 U
SE

HI
ST

O
RI

C
A

L 
C

O
UR

TH
O

US
E

C
O

UN
TY

 C
O

UR
T 

C
LE

RK

M
O

N
RO

E 
ST

M
O

NRO
E S

T

MCNEILL ST

ROCKINGHAM ST

MCREYNOLDS ST

RI
C

K 
RH

YN
E 

PU
BL

IC
 S

A
FE

TY
 C

EN
TE

R

C
A

RT
HA

G
E 

EL
EM

EN
TA

RY
 S

C
HO

O
L

14



L
E

G
E

N
D

PA
R

KI
N

G

SI
D

EW
AL

KS

O
PE

N
 S

PA
C

E

C
R

O
SS

 W
AL

KS

8

E
X

IS
T

IN
G

 
C

O
N

D
IT

IO
N

S
ST

RE
E

TS
CA

PE

M
O

N
RO

E 
ST

M
O

NRO
E S

T

MCNEILL ST

ROCKINGHAM

MCREYNOLDS ST

C
A

RT
HA

G
E 

EL
EM

EN
TA

RY
 S

C
HO

O
L

RI
C

K 
RH

YN
E 

PU
BL

IC
 S

A
FE

TY
 C

EN
TE

R

HI
ST

O
RI

C
A

L 
C

O
UR

TH
O

US
E

C
O

UN
TY

 C
O

UR
T 

C
LE

RK

15



9C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 I
N

P
U

T

IN
-P

E
RS

O
N

 &
 O

N
LI

N
E

 S
U

RV
E

Y
S:

K
E

Y
 T

A
K

E
AW

AY
S

PU
BL

IC
 IN

PU
T

•
BE

TT
E

R 
LI

G
H

TI
N

G
 F

O
R 

SA
FE

TY

•
M

O
RE

 L
A

N
D

SC
A

PI
N

G
 /

 G
RE

E
N

 S
PA

CE
S

•
G

AT
H

E
RI

N
G

 A
RE

A
S

•
BE

TT
E

R 
PE

D
E

ST
RI

A
N

 S
A

FE
TY

•
BE

TT
E

R 
/ 

W
ID

E
R 

SI
D

E
W

A
LK

S

•
M

O
RE

 P
LA

CE
S 

TO
 E

A
T

•
IM

PR
O

V
E

D
 A

CC
E

SS
IB

IL
IT

Y

•
M

O
RE

 A
CT

IV
IT

IE
S 

A
N

D
 E

V
E

N
TS

PUUU
BBBLLL

IICC
 IINN

PPUU
TT

•
2 

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 IN

PU
T 

W
O

RK
SH

O
PS

- N
O

V
E

M
BE

R 
20

23
 &

 M
A

RC
H

 2
02

4

•
 S

U
RV

E
Y

S 
A

T 
W

O
RK

SH
O

P 
&

 O
N

LI
N

E

•
RE

CE
IV

E
D

 IN
PU

T 
FR

O
M

 2
50

+
 P

E
O

PL
E

16



88

7

9

2828

2727

2525

55

3030

1515

2020

22

12

3333

1616

1313
3131

2626

24

23

4

18
10

19

11

22

11

2929

34 35 14

21

66

33

17

32

8

7

9

2828

2727

2525

55

3030

1515

2020

22

12

3333

1616

1313
3131

2626

24

23

4

18
10

19

11

22

11

2929

34 35 14

21

66

33

17

32

10

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 I
N

P
U

T
 M

E
E

T
IN

G

G
AT

H
E

RI
N

G
 F

E
E

D
BA

CK

PU
BL

IC
 R

E
SP

O
N

SE

1212 2244224422 444444

2323

44

1818
1010

1919

1111

1717

33223322

1212 22222222 224244224244

2323

44

1818
1010

1919

1111

1717

3232232322

7777

MCREYNOLDS ST

C
A

RT
HA

G
E 

HI
ST

O
RI

C
A

L 
C

O
UR

TH
O

US
E

C
A

RT
HA

G
E 

EL
EM

EN
TA

RY
 S

C
HO

O
L

2121212121 M
O

NR
O

E 
ST

MCNEILL ST

ROCKINGHAM ST

777777

MCREYNOLDS ST

HI
ST

O
RI

C
A

L 
C

O
UR

TH
O

US
E

21212121221221 M
O

NR
O

E 
ST

MCNEILL ST

ROCKINGHAM ST

ROC
RO

C
A

RT
HA

G
E 

EL
EM

EN
TA

RY
 S

C
HO

O
L

17



ID
 (G

re
en

 =
 

Op
en

 S
pa

ce
, 

Or
an

ge
 =

 
Hy

br
id

, B
lu

e 
= 

Pa
rk

in
g)

W
ha

t t
hr

ee
 w

or
ds

 
w

ou
ld

 y
ou

 u
se

 to
 

de
sc

rib
e 

do
w

nt
ow

n 
Ca

rt
ha

ge
?

If 
so

m
eo

ne
 g

oe
s 

do
w

nt
ow

n 
fo

r t
he

 fi
rs

t 
tim

e,
 w

ha
t i

s t
he

 o
ne

 
th

in
g 

yo
u 

re
co

m
m

en
d 

th
ey

 se
e 

w
hi

le
 th

er
e?

W
ha

t i
s y

ou
r f

av
or

ite
 

th
in

g 
ab

ou
t D

ow
nt

ow
n 

Ca
rt

ha
ge

?
W

ha
t i

s y
ou

r l
ea

st
 fa

vo
rit

e 
th

in
g 

ab
ou

t D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Ca

rt
ha

ge
?

In
 o

ne
 w

or
d,

 w
ha

t a
re

 y
ou

r 
ov

er
al

l i
m

pr
es

sio
ns

 o
f t

he
 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t 
do

w
nt

ow
n?

Ae
st

he
tic

s?
Sa

fe
ty

?C
on

ne
ct

iv
i

ty
?

Ho
w

 sa
fe

 d
o 

yo
u 

fe
el

 
w

al
ki

ng
 in

 D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Ca

rt
ha

ge
?

Ho
w

 d
oe

s d
ow

nt
ow

n 
tr

af
fic

 
af

fe
ct

 y
ou

r e
xp

er
ie

nc
e?

De
sc

rib
e 

yo
ur

 th
ou

gh
ts

 o
n 

th
e 

cu
rr

en
t v

isu
al

 ch
ar

ac
te

r o
f 

Do
w

nt
ow

n 
Ca

rt
ha

ge
.

W
ha

t w
ou

ld
 y

ou
 li

ke
 to

 
se

e 
do

w
nt

ow
n?

 (m
or

e 
pa

rk
in

g,
 b

et
te

r s
id

ew
al

ks
, 

co
nn

ec
tiv

ity
, g

at
he

rin
g 

sp
ac

es
, e

tc
.)

W
ha

t i
s t

he
 b

es
t t

hi
ng

 C
ar

th
ag

e 
co

ul
d 

do
 to

 d
ra

w
 p

eo
pl

e 
do

w
nt

ow
n 

(s
pe

nd
 ti

m
e,

 sh
op

, e
at

, e
tc

.)?
 

Ar
e 

th
er

e 
ot

he
r c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

yo
u 

ha
ve

 e
xp

er
ie

nc
ed

 th
at

 w
e 

co
ul

d 
le

ar
n 

fro
m

 a
nd

 st
ud

y?
  

W
ha

t d
id

 y
ou

 li
ke

 a
bo

ut
 th

os
e 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

?
W

ha
t w

ou
ld

 y
ou

 li
ke

 D
ow

nt
ow

n 
Ca

rt
ha

ge
 to

 lo
ok

 
lik

e 
in

 5
 y

ea
rs

?

1
Hi

st
or

ica
l, 

ec
le

ct
ic,

 u
p 

an
d 

co
m

in
g.

La
rg

e 
pa

rk
 a

re
a 

w
ith

 
re

st
au

ra
nt

s a
nd

 o
pe

n 
ai

r s
ea

tin
g 

ne
ar

by
.

W
al

ka
bi

lit
y 

an
d 

po
te

nt
al

.
La

ck
 o

f r
es

ta
ur

an
ts

 a
nd

 w
al

ka
bl

e 
ki

ds
 

ac
tiv

iti
es

.
Co

nn
ec

tiv
ity

.
Re

la
tiv

el
y 

Sa
fe

.

Pe
op

le
 d

on
't 

st
op

 a
t t

he
 

cr
os

sw
al

ks
 a

t t
he

 ci
rc

le
, i

ns
ta

lli
ng

 
fla

sh
er

s, 
or

 cr
os

sw
al

k 
sig

ns
 m

ay
 

be
 h

el
pf

ul
. I

 fe
el

 a
s o

ff 
pe

op
le

 
do

n'
t u

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

e 
co

nc
ep

t 
th

at
 p

ed
es

tr
ia

ns
 h

av
e 

th
e 

rig
ht

 o
f 

w
ay

. 

Th
e 

vi
su

al
 ch

ar
ac

te
r h

as
 p

ot
en

tia
l. 

Th
e 

hi
st

or
ica

l e
le

m
en

ts
, a

nd
 m

ur
al

s 
le

nd
 ch

ar
ac

te
r. 

Th
e 

th
rif

t s
ho

ps
 g

iv
e 

a 
hi

p 
vi

be
. T

he
re

 is
 p

ot
en

tia
l f

or
 

ne
w

 re
st

au
ra

nt
s a

nd
 p

la
y 

sp
ac

es
 

an
d 

ga
th

er
in

g 
ar

ea
s f

or
 ch

ild
re

n 
th

at
 co

ul
d 

m
ak

e 
Ca

rt
ha

ge
 a

 re
al

ly
 

ha
pp

en
in

g 
to

w
n)

. T
hi

nk
 P

itt
sb

or
o.

 

Ga
th

er
in

g 
sp

ac
es

, 
re

st
au

ra
nt

s, 
ce

nt
ra

lly
 

lo
ca

te
d 

pl
ay

 
st

ru
ct

ur
e/

op
en

 sp
ac

e 
ne

ar
 

re
st

au
ra

nt
s. 

O
r s

om
et

hi
ng

 
lik

e 
Re

ds
 C

or
ne

r.

Al
l m

en
tio

ne
d 

Ab
ov

e.
 O

ut
do

or
 

se
at

in
g 

ar
ea

s, 
Pl

ac
es

 to
 e

at
 w

ith
 

ga
m

e 
ar

ea
s f

or
 k

id
s (

th
in

k 
Re

c 
Ro

om
). 

O
ne

 o
r t

w
o 

m
id

-h
ig

h 
ra

ng
e 

re
st

au
ra

nt
s-

no
t t

oo
 m

an
y-

 M
ay

be
 

ju
st

 o
ne

 fo
r n

ow
.

W
ish

 I 
ha

d 
th

e 
ca

pi
ta

l t
o 

op
en

 o
ne

:)
Pi

tt
sb

or
o,

 N
C 

- C
ol

um
bu

s, 
GA

, 

W
al

ka
bl

e,
 re

st
au

ra
nt

s, 
sh

op
s, 

sa
fe

, p
la

yg
ro

un
d 

sa
fe

 
(a

 li
tt

le
 sk

et
ch

y 
do

w
n 

in
 lo

w
er

 a
re

a 
m

ay
be

 m
or

e 
lig

ht
in

g 
or

 p
re

se
nc

e 
do

w
n 

th
er

e 
at

 N
an

cy
 K

ai
se

r o
r 

ex
pa

nd
 sc

ho
ol

 d
ow

n 
th

er
e 

ov
er

 th
e 

hi
ll 

an
d 

re
lo

ca
te

 
th

e 
pl

ay
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
el

se
w

he
re

). 

2
Co

ur
th

ou
se

, b
or

in
g,

 
de

ad
 o

n 
w

ee
ke

nd
s 

No
th

in
g 

I w
ou

ld
 

re
co

m
m

en
d.

 W
e 

do
n’

t 
ha

ve
 a

ny
th

in
g 

sp
ec

ia
l 

Ab
so

lu
te

ly
 n

ot
hi

ng
. W

e 
ne

ed
 th

in
gs

 to
 co

m
e 

to
 

to
w

n.
 

Ev
er

yt
hi

ng
! I

t’s
 b

or
in

g,
 n

ot
hi

ng
 is

 
op

en
 o

n 
w

ee
ke

nd
, y

ou
 ca

n’
t e

ve
n 

ge
t 

a 
dr

in
k 

af
te

r 9
pm

 a
ny

w
he

re
 p

re
tt

y 
m

uc
h,

 n
o 

so
cia

l g
at

he
rin

g 
pl

ac
es

. I
t’s

 
no

t a
 q

ua
in

t t
ow

n 
at

 a
ll 

Ey
es

or
e 

Sa
fe

It’
s t

ot
al

ly
 fi

ne
 e

xc
ep

t 
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
rig

ht
 n

ow
 

Bl
ah

 is
 a

ll 
I c

an
 sa

y.
 A

vo
id

 it
 a

t a
ll 

co
st

s

Bu
sin

es
se

s t
ha

t g
et

 p
eo

pl
e 

ou
t i

n 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 li
ke

 
so

ut
he

rn
 p

in
es

 b
re

w
er

y 
th

at
 is

 co
m

in
g,

 n
ee

d 
m

or
e 

bu
sin

es
se

s t
ha

t m
at

te
r, 

an
ot

he
r p

ar
k 

Pl
ac

es
 to

 g
at

he
r a

nd
 h

av
e 

a 
be

er
 

So
ut

he
rn

 p
in

es
 

Q
ua

in
t d

ow
nt

ow
n 

sid
es

w
al

k 
th

at
 I 

ac
tu

al
ly

 w
an

t t
o 

w
al

k 
do

w
n 

w
ith

 sh
op

s n
ot

 ju
st

 la
w

ye
rs

 o
ffi

ce
s. 

Si
m

ila
r t

o 
so

ut
he

rn
 p

in
es

 

3
Bu

sy
, u

nd
er

de
ve

lo
pe

d,
 

po
te

nt
ia

l
Th

e 
ol

d 
co

ur
th

ou
se

No
t v

er
y 

m
uc

h 
th

es
e 

da
ys

. O
th

er
 th

an
 th

e 
co

ur
th

ou
se

 sq
ua

re
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f t
he

 m
ai

n 
th

or
ou

gh
 fa

re
 re

al
ly

 
isn

't 
ve

ry
 e

nt
ici

ng
.

Th
e 

ap
pe

ar
an

ce
 o

f t
he

 b
us

in
es

s 
di

st
ric

t f
ro

m
 fo

od
 li

on
 to

 M
cN

ei
l S

t
Th

e 
co

ur
th

ou
se

 co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n.

O
th

er
 th

an
 th

e 
co

ur
t h

ou
se

 
sq

ua
re

 th
e 

to
w

n 
ae

st
he

tic
s 

re
al

ly
 d

o 
ne

ed
 a

n 
im

pr
ov

em
en

t.
De

pe
nd

s o
n 

w
he

n 
co

ur
t g

et
s o

ut
.

Th
e 

tr
af

fic
 o

n 
M

cR
ey

no
ld

s 
ar

ou
nd

 R
ay

 S
t c

an
 b

e 
co

ng
es

te
d,

 
an

d 
th

e 
ja

yw
al

ke
rs

 cr
os

sin
g 

fro
m

 
th

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
lo

t t
o 

th
e 

bu
sin

es
s 

ca
n 

be
 d

an
ge

ro
us

. S
om

et
im

es
 

th
e 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
 w

ill
 ju

st
 w

al
k 

ou
t 

in
to

 tr
af

fic
 e

xp
ec

tin
g 

th
e 

ve
hi

cle
s 

to
 st

op
.

Th
e 

ar
ea

 fr
om

 F
oo

d 
Lio

n 
to

 th
e 

co
ur

t h
ou

se
 lo

ok
s d

es
ol

at
e,

 
un

ke
m

pt
, u

nr
ul

y.

It 
re

al
ly

 d
ep

en
ds

 o
n 

w
ha

t 
yo

u 
ar

e 
ca

lli
ng

 d
ow

nt
ow

n.
 

Co
ur

th
ou

se
 sq

ua
re

 co
ul

d 
de

f u
se

 b
et

te
r p

ar
ki

ng
 

re
gu

la
tio

ns
, m

or
e 

pe
de

st
ria

n 
cr

os
sin

g 
sig

ns
. 

M
on

ro
e 

St
 co

rr
id

or
 n

ee
ds

 
a 

co
m

pl
et

e 
ov

er
ha

ul
 in

 
ap

pe
ar

an
ce

. 
Ac

tiv
iti

es
 fo

r t
he

 k
id

s, 
Ca

ry
!

Th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

to
 b

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 a
nd

 cl
ea

ne
d 

up
.

M
or

e 
fa

m
ily

 fr
ie

nd
ly

 v
en

ue
s, 

m
ay

be
 so

m
e 

ni
ce

 sh
op

s 
no

t g
ea

re
d 

to
w

ar
ds

 th
rif

t o
r a

nt
iq

ue
s.

4
Bu

sy
, c

ar
-c

en
tr

ic,
 fu

ll.
 

Th
e 

up
co

m
in

g 
br

ew
er

y.
 

It 
is 

ex
tr

em
el

y 
vi

br
an

t. 
Al

th
ou

gh
 I 

th
in

k c
ar

s 
ca

n 
be

 li
m

ite
d,

 m
an

y 
w

al
k 

an
d 

ar
e 

do
in

g 
ac

tiv
iti

es
 d

ow
nt

ow
n.

Al
l t

he
 tr

af
fic

. V
er

y 
un

sa
fe

 fo
r 

pe
de

st
ria

ns
. 

Un
sa

fe
.

No
t v

er
y.

 A
lth

ou
gh

 y
ou

 
m

ay
 b

e 
ab

le
 to

 g
et

 
fro

m
 p

oi
nt

 A
 to

 p
oi

nt
 B

, 
tr

af
fic

 a
nd

 li
gh

tin
g 

m
ay

 
be

 a
 b

ig
 is

su
e 

to
 ca

us
e 

ac
cid

en
ts

. 
Hi

gh
ly

. E
xt

re
m

el
y 

lo
ud

 a
nd

 b
us

y.
 

Vi
su

al
ly

 p
le

as
in

g,
 b

ut
 co

ul
d 

us
e 

pu
bl

ic 
se

at
in

g 
an

d 
m

or
e 

w
el

co
m

in
g 

fe
at

ur
es

.

Le
ss

 p
ar

ki
ng

, m
or

e 
sid

ew
al

ks
 o

n 
al

l s
tr

ee
ts

 
th

at
 a

re
 A

DA
 co

m
pl

ia
nt

, 
pu

bl
ic 

se
at

in
g,

 le
ss

 ro
om

 
fo

r c
ar

s/
tr

uc
ks

. 

Ho
st

 e
ve

nt
s, 

ha
ve

 m
or

e 
of

 a
 n

ig
ht

lif
e 

af
te

r 5
 p

.m
., 

cr
ea

te
 m

or
e 

sp
ac

es
 fo

r 
co

m
m

un
ity

 g
at

he
rin

g -
 fo

od
 tr

uc
k 

ev
en

t o
n 

M
ar

tin
 S

tr
ee

t a
fte

r i
t i

s 
sh

ut
 d

ow
n 

to
 tu

rn
 in

to
 a

n 
al

le
y 

fo
r 

co
m

m
un

ity
 g

at
he

rin
g.

 

Sa
nf

or
d 

- B
oo

's 
an

d 
Br

ew
s e

ve
nt

 
du

rin
g 

Ha
llo

w
ee

n.
 C

re
at

e 
a 

re
as

on
 to

 v
isi

t d
ow

nt
ow

n 
sh

op
s 

an
d 

re
st

au
ra

nt
s a

nd
 m

ak
e 

it 
a 

go
al

 to
 g

et
 lo

ca
ls 

an
d 

ou
ts

id
er

s 
to

 tr
y 

lo
ca

l b
us

in
es

se
s. 

Q
ui

et
er

 fo
r p

ed
es

tr
ia

ns
, m

or
e 

lig
ht

in
g,

 m
or

e 
se

at
in

g 
- 

es
pe

cia
lly

 fo
r C

ou
nt

y 
em

pl
oy

ee
s d

ur
in

g 
lu

nc
h 

br
ea

k,
 

le
ss

 p
ar

ki
ng

 in
 d

ow
nt

ow
n 

an
d 

m
ov

ed
 to

 b
ac

k 
st

re
et

s 
th

at
 a

re
 w

id
er

 a
nd

 n
ot

 b
ei

ng
 u

til
ize

d 
fo

r p
ar

ki
ng

 n
ow

. 

5
Ch

ao
tic

, u
no

rg
an

ize
d,

 
he

ct
ic 

Al
w

ay
s t

ur
n 

in
 th

e 
di

re
ct

io
n 

of
 tr

af
fic

. 
Do

n'
t t

ry
 cr

os
sin

g 
ov

er
 

es
pe

cia
lly

 fr
om

 th
e 

fo
od

 li
on

 
Th

e 
sm

al
l s

ho
ps

 if
 th

er
e 

w
as

 a
de

qu
at

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
Tr

af
fic

 
Sa

fe
ty

 
No

 p
ro

bl
em

 
To

ta
l h

ea
da

ch
e 

Un
or

ga
ni

ze
d.

 N
o 

flo
w

Be
tt

er
 re

st
au

ra
nt

s 
Be

tt
er

 re
st

au
ra

nt
s 

Pi
tt

sb
or

o 
fo

r t
he

 
No

t t
o 

lo
ok

 so
 ch

op
py

 

6

Ho
m

et
ow

n 
Fr

ie
nd

ly
 

Co
ur

th
ou

se
 

Th
e 

w
on

de
rfu

l s
ho

ps
 

do
w

nt
ow

n 
Th

e 
fri

en
dl

y 
at

m
os

ph
er

e 
Bu

gg
y 

to
w

n 
co

ffe
e

I w
ish

 it
 w

as
 m

or
e 

sa
fe

 to
 

w
al

k 
do

w
nt

ow
n,

 I 
al

so
 d

on
’t 

lo
ve

 th
e 

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

W
or

ry
 a

bo
ut

 th
e 

flo
w

 
of

 tr
af

fic
 

I d
on

’t 
lo

ve
 it

I t
hi

nk
 it

 w
ill

 im
pr

ov
e 

on
ce

 th
e 

ug
ly

 
co

ur
th

ou
se

 is
 fi

ni
sh

ed
 

A 
fa

m
ily

 fr
ie

nd
ly

 p
ar

k 
on

 
ot

he
r s

id
e 

of
 to

w
n 

w
ou

ld
 

be
 n

ice
 

Pl
ac

es
 to

 e
at

So
ut

he
rn

 p
in

es
, t

he
 d

ow
nt

ow
n 

at
m

os
ph

er
e 

is 
in

cr
ed

ib
le

 th
er

e 
so

 w
el

co
m

in
g 

M
or

e 
pl

ac
es

 to
 e

at
 a

nd
 sh

op

7
Cu

te
 q

ua
in

t c
le

an
Th

e 
bo

ut
iq

ue
 sh

op
s 

an
d 

ice
 cr

ea
m

 sh
op

Bo
ut

iq
ue

 sh
op

s a
nd

 
fu

tu
re

 b
re

w
er

y 
Th

e 
pa

w
n 

sh
op

, v
ap

e 
st

or
e,

 a
nd

 
bo

nd
s b

us
in

es
s 

Du
rin

g 
bu

sy
 ti

m
es

 o
f t

he
 d

ay
 

it 
ca

n 
be

 to
ug

h 
to

 cr
os

s t
he

 
st

re
et

 fr
om

 o
ne

 p
la

ce
 to

 th
e 

ne
xt

. I
t h

as
 so

m
e 

re
al

ly
 cu

te
 

hi
st

or
ica

l s
ite

s b
ut

 ce
rt

ai
n 

bu
sin

es
s (

se
e 

ab
ov

e)
 ca

n 
m

ak
e 

it 
fe

el
 li

ke
 it

 m
ay

 b
e 

un
sa

fe
. 

Du
rin

g 
th

e 
da

y 
co

m
pl

et
el

y 
sa

fe
, e

ar
ly

 
m

or
ni

ng
 o

r e
ve

ni
ng

 
tim

e…
 o

nl
y 

w
ith

 m
y 

hu
sb

an
d.

 
I a

m
 p

ick
y 

ab
ou

t d
ay

s a
nd

 ti
m

es
 

to
 g

o 
do

w
nt

ow
n 

Do
n’

t m
od

er
ni

ze
, i

t l
ea

ve
 it

 
hi

st
or

ica
l b

ut
 it

 d
oe

sn
’t 

hu
rt

 to
 

cle
an

 u
p 

so
m

e 
of

 th
e 

bu
ild

in
gs

 th
at

 
ar

e 
fa

lli
ng

 a
pa

rt
. W

ou
ld

 b
e 

be
tt

er
 

w
ith

ou
t s

om
e 

of
 th

e 
“s

ke
tc

hy
” 

bu
sin

es
se

s 
Ga

th
er

in
g 

sp
ac

e

M
or

e 
di

ne
 in

 re
st

au
ra

nt
s, 

m
ak

e 
it 

le
ss

 a
pp

ea
lin

g 
fo

r u
s w

ho
 li

ve
 in

 
Ca

rt
ha

ge
 to

 h
av

e 
to

 g
o 

to
 so

ut
he

rn
 

pi
ne

s f
or

 d
in

ne
r o

r d
at

e 
ni

gh
t 

So
ut

he
rn

 p
in

es
- t

on
s t

o 
do

 
(s

ho
p,

 d
rin

k,
 d

in
e,

 b
e 

ou
ts

id
e,

 
sa

fe
 w

al
ki

ng
, n

o 
sk

et
ch

y 
bu

sin
es

se
s o

n 
th

e 
m

ai
n 

st
re

et
s 

w
he

re
 p

eo
pl

e 
ch

oo
se

 to
 h

an
g 

ou
t)

A 
hi

st
or

ica
l s

ou
th

er
n 

pi
ne

s. 
Ke

ep
 th

e 
sm

al
l t

ow
n 

ch
ar

m
 a

nd
 h

ist
or

y 
bu

t w
ith

 th
in

gs
 to

 d
o.

 T
he

 b
re

w
er

y 
is 

a 
go

od
 st

ar
t!

 

11C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 I
N

P
U

T
 S

U
R

V
E

Y

O
N

LI
N

E
 S

U
RV

E
Y

 (O
V

E
R 

12
0 

SU
BM

IT
TE

D
)

K
E

Y
G

RE
EN

: O
PE

N
 S

PA
C

E
BL

UE
: P

A
RK

IN
G

YE
LL

O
W

: H
YB

RI
D

[T
H

IS
 IS

 A
 S

A
M

PL
E

 O
F 

IN
FO

RM
A

TI
O

N
 C

O
LL

E
CT

E
D

, 
A

D
D

IT
IO

N
A

L 
D

AT
A

 IN
CL

U
D

E
D

 IN
 A

PP
E

N
D

IC
E

S]

18



IM
A
G
E

P
O
S
IT
IV
E

R
E
A
C
T
IO
N

N
E
G
A
T
IV
E

R
E
A
C
T
IO
N

8
4

7
4

13
1

8
5

IM
A
G
E

P
O
S
IT
IV
E

R
E
A
C
T
IO
N

N
E
G
A
T
IV
E

R
E
A
C
T
IO
N

13
1

1
13

11
2

12

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 I
N

P
U

T
 S

U
R

V
E

Y

V
IS

UA
L 

PR
E

FE
RE

N
CE

 S
TU

D
Y

O
V

E
RA

LL
 T

A
K

E
-A

W
AY

S

19



13D
E

SI
G

N
 P

R
O

C
E

SS

D
E

FI
N

IN
G

 T
H

E
 A

RE
A

 O
F 

FO
CU

S
M

C
RE

YN
O

LD
S 

ST
HI

ST
O

RI
C

A
L

C
O

UR
TH

O
US

E

C
O

UN
TY

 
C

O
UR

T 
C

LE
RK

FO
C

US
 A

RE
A

M
O

N
RO

E 
ST

MARTIN ST

RAY ST

MCNEILL ST

RAY ST

MCNEILL ST

20



14

D
E

SI
G

N
 P

R
O

C
E

SS

CO
N

CE
PT

 D
E

V
E

LO
PM

E
N

T

21



15C
A

R
T

H
A

G
E

 D
O

W
N

T
O

W
N

 M
A

ST
E

R
 P

L
A

N

O
V

E
RA

LL
 V

IS
IO

N

TH
IS

 R
EN

D
ER

IN
G

 IS
 IL

LU
ST

RA
TIV

E 
O

N
LY

 A
N

D
 IS

 S
UB

JE
C

T 
TO

 C
HA

N
G

E

M
C

RE
YN

O
LD

S 
ST

HI
ST

O
RI

C
A

L
C

O
UR

TH
O

US
E

C
O

UN
TY

 
C

O
UR

T 
C

LE
RK

M
O

N
RO

E 
ST

MARTIN ST

RAY ST

MCNEILL ST

RAY ST

MCNEILL ST

22



16

C
A

R
T

H
A

G
E

 D
O

W
N

T
O

W
N

 M
A

ST
E

R
 P

L
A

N

D
O

W
N

TO
W

N
 C

E
N

TE
R

TH
IS

 R
EN

D
ER

IN
G

 IS
 IL

LU
ST

RA
TIV

E 
O

N
LY

 A
N

D
 IS

 S
UB

JE
C

T 
TO

 C
HA

N
G

E

M
C

RE
YN

O
LD

S 
ST

HI
ST

O
RI

C
A

L
C

O
UR

TH
O

US
E

C
O

UN
TY

 
C

O
UR

T 
C

LE
RK

M
O

N
RO

E 
ST

23



17D
O

W
N

T
O

W
N

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

SH
O

PP
IN

G
 P

LA
Z

A
S

M
A

ST
ER

 P
LA

N
 Z

O
O

M
-IN

TH
IS

 R
EN

D
ER

IN
G

 IS
 IL

LU
ST

RA
TIV

E 
O

N
LY

 A
N

D
 IS

 S
UB

JE
C

T 
TO

 C
HA

N
G

E

24



18

D
O

W
N

T
O

W
N

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

SA
FE

 P
A

RK
IN

G
 A

CC
E

SS

M
A

ST
ER

 P
LA

N
 Z

O
O

M
-IN

TH
IS

 R
EN

D
ER

IN
G

 IS
 IL

LU
ST

RA
TIV

E 
O

N
LY

 A
N

D
 IS

 S
UB

JE
C

T 
TO

 C
HA

N
G

E

25



19D
O

W
N

T
O

W
N

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

O
U

TD
O

O
R 

G
A

TH
E

RI
N

G

M
A

ST
ER

 P
LA

N
 Z

O
O

M
-IN

TH
IS

 R
EN

D
ER

IN
G

 IS
 IL

LU
ST

RA
TIV

E 
O

N
LY

 A
N

D
 IS

 S
UB

JE
C

T 
TO

 C
HA

N
G

E

26



20

D
O

W
N

T
O

W
N

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

 O
U

TD
O

O
R 

G
A

TH
E

RI
N

G
 |

 C
RO

SS
 S

E
CT

IO
N

PL
A

N
TE

D
 

BU
FF

ER

PL
A

N
TE

D
 

BU
FF

ER

SI
D

E-
W

A
LK

SI
D

E-
W

A
LK

ST
A

N
D

A
RD

 
PA

RK
IN

G

ST
A

N
D

A
RD

 
PA

RK
IN

G

ST
A

N
D

A
RD

 
PA

RK
IN

G

ST
A

N
D

A
RD

 
PA

RK
IN

G

A
C

C
ES

S 
A

IS
LE

A
C

C
ES

S 
A

IS
LE

A
D

A
 

PA
RK

IN
G

A
D

A
 

PA
RK

IN
G

ST
A

N
D

A
RD

 
PA

RK
IN

G

ST
A

N
D

A
RD

 
PA

RK
IN

G

SI
D

E-
W

A
LK

SI
D

E-
W

A
LK

PL
A

N
T 

BE
D

PL
A

N
T 

BE
D

BR
IC

K 
C

O
UR

TY
A

RD

BR
IC

K 
C

O
UR

TY
A

RD

PL
A

N
T 

BE
D

PL
A

N
T 

BE
D

RE
A

R 
A

C
C

ES
S 

A
LL

EY

RE
A

R 
A

C
C

ES
S 

A
LL

EY

ST
RE

E
T 

LI
G

H
T 

W
/ 

BA
N

N
E

R

A
D

A
 P

A
RK

IN
G

O
U

TD
O

O
R 

SE
A

TI
N

G

TR
A

SH
 R

E
CE

PT
AC

LE
S

ST
RE

E
T 

TR
E

E
S

CO
N

CR
E

TE
 B

O
RD

E
R

LO
W

 B
RI

CK
 W

A
LL

 W
/ 

CO
LU

M
N

S

PE
RV

IO
U

S 
PA

V
IN

G

TH
IS

 R
EN

D
ER

IN
G

 IS
 IL

LU
ST

RA
TIV

E 
O

N
LY

 A
N

D
 IS

 S
UB

JE
C

T 
TO

 C
HA

N
G

E

27



21D
O

W
N

T
O

W
N

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

M
CR

E
Y

N
O

LD
S 

ST
RE

E
T

M
A

ST
ER

 P
LA

N
 Z

O
O

M
-IN

TH
IS

 R
EN

D
ER

IN
G

 IS
 IL

LU
ST

RA
TIV

E 
O

N
LY

 A
N

D
 IS

 S
UB

JE
C

T 
TO

 C
HA

N
G

E

28



22

D
O

W
N

T
O

W
N

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

M
CR

E
Y

N
O

LD
S 

ST
RE

E
T 

| 
CR

O
SS

 S
E

CT
IO

N

EX
IS

TIN
G

 
PA

RK
IN

G

EX
IS

TIN
G

 
PA

RK
IN

G

PL
A

N
T 

BE
D

PL
A

N
T 

BE
D

SI
D

EW
A

LK

SI
D

EW
A

LKK
BR

IC
K 

PA
V

ER
S

K
BR

IC
K 

PA
V

ER
SSSSS

PL
A

N
T 

BE
D

SSSS
PL

A
N

T 
BE

D

TR
A

V
EL

 
LA

N
E

TR
A

V
EL

 
LA

N
E

TR
A

V
EL

 
LA

N
E

TR
A

V
EL

 
LA

N
E

PA
RA

LL
EL

 
PA

RK
IN

G

PA
RA

LL
EL

 
PA

RK
IN

GL 
BR

IC
K 

PA
VE

RS

L 
BR

IC
K 

PA
VE

RS

SI
D

EW
A

LK

SI
D

EW
A

LK

ST
RE

E
T 

TR
E

E
S

BE
N

CH
W

ID
E

 S
TO

RE
FR

O
N

T 
AC

CE
SS

D
E

CO
RA

TI
V

E
 C

O
N

CR
E

TE

ST
RE

E
T 

LI
G

H
T 

W
/

BA
N

N
E

R

PL
A

N
TE

R 
PO

TS
PA

RA
LL

E
L 

PA
RK

IN
G

AC
CE

SS
 T

O
 E

X
IS

TI
N

G
 

PA
RK

IN
G

 L
O

T

TH
IS

 R
EN

D
ER

IN
G

 IS
 IL

LU
ST

RA
TIV

E 
O

N
LY

 A
N

D
 IS

 S
UB

JE
C

T 
TO

 C
HA

N
G

E

29



23D
O

W
N

T
O

W
N

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

M
O

N
RO

E
 S

TR
E

E
T

M
A

ST
ER

 P
LA

N
 Z

O
O

M
-IN

TH
IS

 R
EN

D
ER

IN
G

 IS
 IL

LU
ST

RA
TIV

E 
O

N
LY

 A
N

D
 IS

 S
UB

JE
C

T 
TO

 C
HA

N
G

E

30



24

D
O

W
N

T
O

W
N

 I
M

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

M
O

N
RO

E
 S

TR
E

E
T 

| 
CR

O
SS

 S
E

CT
IO

N

PL
A

N
T 

BE
D

PL
A

N
T 

BE
D

SI
D

EW
A

LK

SI
D

EW
A

LKKK
BR

IC
K 

PA
V

ER
S

KK
BR

IC
K 

PA
V

ER
SSSSS

PL
A

N
T 

BE
D

SSSS
PL

A
N

T 
BE

D

TR
A

V
EL

 
LA

N
E

TR
A

V
EL

 
LA

N
E

TU
RN

IN
G

 
LA

N
E

TU
RN

IN
G

 
LA

N
E

TR
A

V
EL

 
LA

N
E

TR
A

V
EL

 
LA

N
E

PA
RA

LL
EL

 
PA

RK
IN

G

PA
RA

LL
EL

 
PA

RK
IN

GL 
BR

IC
K 

PA
VE

RS

L 
BR

IC
K 

PA
VE

RS

SI
D

EW
A

LK

SI
D

EW
A

LK

ST
RE

E
T 

TR
E

E
S

BE
N

CH
W

ID
E

 S
TO

RE
FR

O
N

T 
AC

CE
SS

D
E

CO
RA

TI
V

E
 C

O
N

CR
E

TE

ST
RE

E
T 

LI
G

H
T 

W
/

BA
N

N
E

R

PR
O

TE
CT

E
D

 S
H

O
U

LD
E

R
PA

RA
LL

E
L 

PA
RK

IN
G

PL
A

N
TE

R 
PO

TS

TH
IS

 R
EN

D
ER

IN
G

 IS
 IL

LU
ST

RA
TIV

E 
O

N
LY

 A
N

D
 IS

 S
UB

JE
C

T 
TO

 C
HA

N
G

E

31



25P
R

O
P

O
SE

D
 H

A
R

D
SC

A
P

E

PA
V

IN
G

 P
AT

TE
RN

S

CR
O

SS
W

A
LK

S

BR
IC

K
 A

N
D

 C
O

N
CR

E
TE

 S
ID

E
W

A
LK

S
BR

IC
K

 C
O

U
RT

YA
RD

S

PE
D

E
ST

RI
A

N
 R

E
FU

G
E

PR
O

PO
SE

D
 C

RO
SS

W
A

LK
S

32



26

P
R

O
P

O
SE

D
 L

A
N

D
SC

A
P

E

ST
RE

E
T 

TR
E

E
S

PL
A

N
T 

BE
D

S

‘E
N

D
U

RA
N

CE
’ C

O
M

PT
O

N
 O

A
K

CA
RO

LI
N

A
 M

A
PL

E

A
N

N
UA

L 
CO

LO
R

N
AT

IV
E

 P
LA

N
T 

BE
D

S

33



27P
R

O
P

O
SE

D
 

F
U

R
N

IS
H

IN
G

S
ST

RE
E

T 
LI

G
H

TS

BE
N

CH
E

S

ST
RE

E
T 

LI
G

H
TS

 W
IT

H
 B

A
N

N
E

RS
O

RN
A

M
E

N
TA

L 
ST

RE
E

T 
LI

G
H

TS

 5
’ B

E
N

CH
6’

 S
TE

E
L 

BE
N

CH

34



28

P
R

O
P

O
SE

D
 

F
U

R
N

IS
H

IN
G

S
PL

A
N

TE
R 

PO
TS

TR
A

SH
 R

E
CE

PT
AC

LE
S

CO
N

CR
E

TE
 P

LA
N

TE
R 

PO
TS

E
X

IS
TI

N
G

 P
LA

N
TE

R 
PO

TS

SO
LA

R-
PO

W
E

RE
D

TR
A

SH
 C

O
M

PA
CT

IN
G

 R
E

CE
PT

AC
LE

CO
V

E
RE

D
 S

TE
E

L 
TR

A
SH

 R
E

CE
PT

AC
LE

S

35



29F
U

T
U

R
E

 
IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

E
X

PA
N

D
E

D
 P

H
A

SI
N

G
HI

ST
O

RI
C

A
L 

C
O

UR
TH

O
US

E

C
O

UN
TY

 C
O

UR
T 

C
LE

RK

RI
C

K 
RH

YN
E 

BU
IL

D
IN

G

C
A

RT
HA

G
E 

EL
EM

EN
TA

RY
 S

C
HO

O
L

M
O

NRO
E S

T

MCNEILL ST

MCREYNOLD
S S

T

PR
IM

A
RY

 
PH

A
SI

N
G

SE
C

O
N

D
A

RY
PH

A
SI

N
G

TE
RT

IA
RY

 
PH

A
SI

N
G

36



A
p

p
ro

v
ed

  
|

M
ay

2
0

2
2

30

F
U

T
U

R
E

 
IM

P
R

O
V

E
M

E
N

T
S

A
D

O
PT

E
D

 P
LA

N
S

20
40

 L
A

N
D

 U
SE

 P
LA

N
BI

K
E

 &
 P

E
D

E
ST

RI
A

N
 P

LA
N

37



31

38



32

A
P

P
E

N
D

IC
E

S

SI
TE

 IN
V

E
N

TO
RY

1 2 3

CO
M

M
U

N
IT

Y
 IN

PU
T 

SU
RV

E
Y

S

D
E

SI
G

N
 C

O
N

CE
PT

S

pp
. 3

3-
36

pp
. 3

7-
50

pp
. 5

1-
56

39



33SI
T

E
 I

N
V

E
N

T
O

R
Y

SI
TE

 V
IS

IT
 - 

CA
RT

H
AG

E

M
C

RE
YN

O
LD

S 
SI

D
EW

A
LK

S
C

O
UR

TH
O

US
E 

A
C

C
ES

S
C

O
RN

ER
 P

A
RK

IN
G

PA
RK

IN
G

 L
O

T 
A

C
C

ES
S

M
A

RT
IN

 S
TR

EE
T

C
RO

SS
W

A
LK

S
PA

RA
LL

EL
 P

A
RK

IN
G

40



34

SI
T

E
 I

N
V

E
N

T
O

R
Y

M
UR

A
LS

W
A

YF
IN

D
IN

G
M

O
N

RO
E 

ST
RE

ET

A
SP

HA
LT

 W
A

LK
S

ST
RE

ET
 F

UR
N

IS
HI

N
G

S
TE

M
PO

RA
RY

 S
IG

N
A

G
E

ST
RE

ET
SC

A
PE

41



35SI
T

E
 I

N
V

E
N

T
O

R
Y

SI
TE

 V
IS

IT
 - 

PI
TT

SB
O

RO

O
UT

D
O

O
R 

D
IN

IN
G

C
RO

SS
W

A
LK

S
BR

IC
K 

SI
D

EW
A

LK
S

EL
EV

A
TE

D
 S

TA
G

E
C

O
UR

TH
O

US
E 

A
C

C
ES

S
C

O
RN

ER
 P

A
RK

IN
G

42



36

SI
T

E
 I

N
V

E
N

T
O

R
Y

C
O

N
C

RE
TE

 A
LL

EY
A

D
A

 A
C

C
ES

S
ST

EP
 T

RA
N

SI
TIO

N
S

PE
RV

IO
US

 P
A

V
IN

G
ST

RE
ET

 F
UR

N
IS

HI
N

G
S

PE
D

ES
TR

IA
N

 R
EF

UG
E

BI
KE

 R
A

C
K

43



88

77

99

2828

2727

2525

55

3030

1515

2020

2222

1212

3333

1616

1313
3131

2626

2424

2323

44

1818
1010

1919

1111

22

11

2929

34 35 14

2121

66

33

1717

3232

37C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 I
N

P
U

T
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
S

LA
N

D
 U

SE
 - 

PI
N

 M
A

P

*M
A

P 
PR

ES
EN

TE
D

 D
UR

IN
G

 P
UB

LI
C

 IN
PU

T 
SE

SS
IO

N

44



88

77

99

2828

2727

2525

55

3030

1515

2020

2222

1212

3333

1616

1313
3131

2626

2424

2323

44

1818
1010

1919

1111

22

11

2929

34 35 14

2121

66

33

1717

3232

38

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 I
N

P
U

T
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
S

ST
RE

E
TS

CA
PE

 - 
PI

N
 M

A
P

*M
A

P 
PR

ES
EN

TE
D

 D
UR

IN
G

 P
UB

LI
C

 IN
PU

T 
SE

SS
IO

N

45



39C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 I
N

P
U

T
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
S

V
IS

UA
L 

PR
E

FE
RE

N
CE

 S
U

RV
E

Y

4 13

4 2

1 3

55 66

88

11
11

77

22
1111

11
1313

33
1111

88 88

46



40

1 3

2 88

44 44

22 55

11
1313

33
1010

22
1111 55

88 77

99 77

47



41C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 I
N

P
U

T
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
S

2 2

3 88

14 2

44 0

22
1212

22
1212

33
1111 55

11
00

22
1212

77

00
1414

48



42

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 I
N

P
U

T
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
S

2 0

6 0

3 1

22
1111

00
1414

77

00
1313

33
1111

11
1111

49



43

PA
V

IN
G

 P
AT

TE
RN

S

CR
O

SS
 W

A
LK

S

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 I
N

P
U

T
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
S

FU
RN

IS
H

IN
G

S 
PA

LE
TT

E
 S

U
RV

E
Y

50



PA
V

IN
G

 P
AT

TE
RN

S

CR
O

SS
 W

A
LK

S

44

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 I
N

P
U

T
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
S

51



45

ST
RE

E
T 

LI
G

H
TS

BE
N

CH
E

S

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 I
N

P
U

T
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
S

52



46

PL
A

N
TE

R 
PO

TS

TR
A

SH
 R

E
CE

PT
AC

LE
S

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 I
N

P
U

T
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
S

53



47C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 I
N

P
U

T
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
S

IN
-P

E
RS

O
N

 &
 O

N
LI

N
E

 S
U

RV
E

Y (C
he

ck
 a

ll t
ha

t a
pp

ly
)

o
17

o
17

o
16

o
14

o
12

o
10

o
10

o
3

W
ha

t a
re

(C
ho

os
e 

up
 to

 th
re

e)

o
15

o
15

o
10

o
8

o
8

o
8

o
8

o
7

o
7

o
6

o
4

o
4

o
0

o
0

54



48

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 I
N

P
U

T
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
S

O
N

LI
N

E
 S

U
RV

E
Y

TR
UC

K 
D

ET
O

UR
 (N

O
 L

A
RG

E 
TR

UC
KS

 D
O

W
N

TO
W

N
)

M
A

KE
 S

A
FE

R 
FO

R 
PE

D
ES

TR
IA

N
S

IN
C

RE
A

SE
 S

TR
EE

T 
LI

G
HT

IN
G

G
A

TH
ER

IN
G

 P
LA

C
ES

M
O

RE
 M

O
D

ER
N

 S
HO

PS
 &

 R
ES

TA
UR

A
N

TS
 O

PE
N

 D
UR

IN
G

 T
HE

 W
EE

KE
N

D

G
O

O
D

 L
IG

HT
IN

G
 A

N
D

 P
LA

C
ES

 T
O

 G
A

TH
ER

RE
M

O
V

E 
ST

RE
ET

 P
A

RK
IN

G
 IN

 C
IR

C
LE

 A
RE

A
M

O
RE

 V
A

RI
ET

Y 
IN

 S
HO

PS
 A

N
D

 B
US

IN
ES

SE
S

W
E 

N
EE

D
 P

ED
ES

TR
IA

N
 H

A
N

D
 S

IG
N

A
LS

 A
T 

BU
SY

 C
RO

SS
W

A
LK

S

55



49C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 I
N

P
U

T
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
S

CO
N

CE
PT

 P
LA

N
S 

IN
PU

T
K

E
Y

G
RE

EN
: O

PE
N

 S
PA

C
E

BL
UE

: P
A

RK
IN

G
YE

LL
O

W
: H

YB
RI

D

R
es

po
nd

en
t

C
on

ce
pt

 A
(O

pe
n 

Sp
ac

e)
C

on
ce

pt
 B

(P
ar

ki
ng

)
C

on
ce

pt
 C

(H
yb

rid
)

LI
K

ES
 / 

D
IS

LI
K

ES
LI

K
ES

 / 
D

IS
LI

K
ES

LI
K

ES
 / 

D
IS

LI
K

ES
1

I l
ik

e 
no

 p
ar

ki
ng

 a
ro

un
d 

ci
rc

le
 w

ith
 m

or
e 

op
en

 s
pa

ce
D

on
’t 

lik
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

ar
ou

nd
 c

irc
le

Pr
ef

er
 n

o 
pa

rk
in

g 
ar

ou
nd

 c
irc

le
 b

ut
 o

k 
if 

it’
s 

st
ric

tly
 A

D
A

2
Li

ke
 n

o 
pa

rk
in

g 
on

 th
e 

ci
rc

le
3

Th
e 

Be
nc

h 
se

at
 –

 th
ey

 c
an

 b
e 

br
an

de
d 

by
 

pe
op

le
 th

at
 w

an
t t

o 
bu

y 
th

em
. I

f t
he

re
 is

 b
ric

k 
w

or
k 

th
en

 b
ric

ks
 c

an
 b

e 
so

ld
.

I l
ik

e 
th

is
 o

ne
 b

es
t –

 b
ut

 re
m

ov
e 

th
e 

pa
rk

-
in

g 
be

tw
ee

n 
m

ar
tin

 a
nd

 M
on

ro
e 

ke
ep

in
g 

th
e 

dr
iv

e 
th

ro
ug

h 
fo

r p
ar

ki
ng

 b
eh

in
d 

th
e 

bu
ild

in
g

4
N

ee
d 

to
 a

dd
 p

ed
es

tri
an

 w
al

kw
ay

s 
on

 n
or

th
 

an
d 

so
ut

h 
si

de
s 

of
 c

ou
rth

ou
se

5
Ad

d 
pa

rk
in

g 
ba

ck
 –

 n
ot

 A
D

A 
fri

en
dl

y
-

w
al

k
Pl

ea
se

 m
ak

e 
bu

sh
es

 3
 ft

 h
ig

h

6
Li

ke
 th

e 
re

m
ov

al
 o

f p
ar

ki
ng

 b
ut

 I 
w

ou
ld

 a
ls

o 
re

m
ov

e 
th

e 
ac

ce
ss

 to
 th

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
an

d 
lo

ad
-

in
g 

ac
ce

ss
 –

 I’
d 

co
ns

id
er

 s
am

e 
w

/ M
ar

tin
 S

t.

D
on

’t 
lik

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
in

 th
e 

ci
rc

le
D

on
’t 

lik
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

in
 th

e 
ci

rc
le

7
Li

ke
 p

le
nt

y 
of

 p
ar

ki
ng

 p
lu

s 
m

or
e 

AD
A 

pa
rk

in
g

8
I l

ik
e 

th
e 

pa
rk

in
g 

pa
ss

th
ro

ug
hs

. W
ou

ld
 li

ke
 to

 
ke

ep
 h

an
di

ca
p 

in
 fr

on
t b

ut
 lo

ve
 th

e 
ga

th
er

in
g 

sp
ac

es
9

Lo
ve

 th
is

! T
hi

s 
is

 w
ha

t a
 h

is
to

ric
 d

ow
nt

ow
n 

sh
ou

ld
 lo

ok
 li

ke
.

Lo
ve

 th
at

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 p

ar
ki

ng
 lo

t i
s 

re
m

ov
ed

. 
Fe

el
 li

ke
 o

pe
n 

sp
ac

e 
co

ul
d 

be
 b

et
te

r i
f p

ar
k-

in
g 

w
as

 d
ec

re
as

ed
.

Lo
ve

 d
ec

re
as

ed
 p

ar
ki

ng
. W

ou
ld

 li
ke

 a
cc

es
s 

to
 p

ar
ki

ng
 lo

t r
em

ov
ed

10
I l

ik
e 

re
m

ov
in

g 
al

l t
he

 p
ar

ki
ng

I l
ik

e 
cl

os
in

g 
th

e 
al

le
y 

do
w

n.
 D

on
’t 

lik
e 

th
e 

pa
rk

in
g

D
on

’t 
lik

e 
th

e 
ac

ce
ss

 a
lle

y 
or

 th
e 

pa
rk

in
g

11
I l

ik
e 

no
 p

ar
ki

ng
 o

n 
th

e 
ci

rc
le

 –
 m

or
e 

pe
de

s-
tri

an
 fr

ie
nd

ly,
 li

ke
 p

ed
 is

la
nd

s 
an

d 
bl

oc
ki

ng
 

ci
rc

le
 fr

om
 p

pl
 c

ro
ss

in
g 

ev
er

yw
he

re

D
on

’t 
lik

e 
al

l t
he

 p
ar

ki
ng

So
m

e 
pa

rk
in

g 
ok

56



50

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 I
N

P
U

T
 S

U
R

V
E

Y
S

Q
U

E
ST

IO
N

:
QQ

UU
EEE

SSTT
IIOO

NN
::

QQQ “W
H

AT
 W

O
U

LD
 Y

O
U

 L
IK

E
 T

O
 S

E
E

 D
O

W
N

TO
W

N
? 

(M
O

RE
 P

A
RK

IN
G

, B
E

TT
E

R 
SI

D
E

W
A

LK
S,

 C
O

N
N

E
CT

IV
IT

Y,
 

G
AT

H
E

RI
N

G
 S

PA
CE

S,
 E

TC
.)”

10
9 

 
 

SU
RV

E
Y

 R
E

SP
O

N
SE

S

17
 

 
 

RE
SP

O
N

SE
S 

W
IT

H
 N

O
 D

IS
CU

SS
IO

N
 R

E
LA

TE
D

 T
O

 O
PE

N

 
 

 
SP

AC
E

, P
A

RK
IN

G
, O

R 
D

E
SI

G
N

92
 

 
RE

LE
VA

N
T 

RE
SP

O
N

SE
S

53
(5

8%
)

FO
CU

S 
O

N
 O

PE
N

 S
PA

CE
, G

RE
E

N
 S

PA
CE

 C
O

N
N

E
CT

IV
IT

Y,

 
 

 
RE

M
O

VA
L 

O
F 

PA
RK

IN
G

17
(1

8%
)

FO
CU

S 
O

N
 C

O
N

V
E

N
IE

N
T 

PA
RK

IN
G

, S
ID

E
W

A
LK

S,

 
 

 
LA

N
D

SC
A

PE
, A

CC
E

SS
IB

LE
 P

A
RK

IN
G

22
(2

4%
)

FO
CU

S 
O

N
 K

E
E

PI
N

G
 O

R 
IN

CR
E

A
SI

N
G

 P
A

RK
IN

G

%%%
2424

%% ININN
GGGGGGGGGG

PAPAPAPAPAPPPPPP
RKRK

II

558
%%

O
PE

N
 

SPSPSSSS
ACAC

EEEEEE
18181818

%%%%
HHHHHHHHHHHHHHHH

Y
H

Y
H

YY
BRBRBRBRR

IDIDDIDIDDDDDDDDDD

57



51

T
T

DDDDDDDDDDDD
EEEE

SSSIII
GGG

NNNN
 CCCC

OOOO
NNN

CCC
EEE

PPP
TTTT

SSSSSSS 
- 

OOOOOOOO
PPPP

TTT
IIIOOO

NNNN
 111111111

O
P

E
N

 S
PA

C
E

 O
P

T
IO

N
TW

O
-W

AY
 T

RA
FF

IC
 W

IT
H

 P
A

RA
LL

E
L 

PA
RK

IN
G

PA
RK

IN
G

 L
O

T 
AC

CE
SS

18
” 

BR
IC

K
 W

A
LL

E
LE

VA
TE

D
 S

TA
G

E
BR

IC
K

 S
IT

TI
N

G
 /

 D
IN

IN
G

 A
RE

A

W
ID

E
N

E
D

 C
O

N
CR

E
TE

 S
ID

E
W

A
LK

PE
D

E
ST

RI
A

N
 R

E
FU

G
E

 IS
LA

N
D

BR
IC

K
 S

IT
TI

N
G

 /
 G

AT
H

E
RI

N
G

 A
RE

A

RE
D

U
CE

D
 L

A
N

E
 W

ID
TH

 (2
0’

)

BR
IC

K
 C

O
U

RT
YA

RD

ST
A

M
PE

D
 A

SP
H

A
LT

 C
RO

SS
W

A
LK

RE
D

U
CE

D
 L

A
N

E
 W

ID
TH

 (2
6’

)

PL
A

N
TI

N
G

 A
RE

A

M
C

RE
YN

O
LD

S 
ST

M
O

N
RO

E 
ST

HI
ST

O
RI

C
 

C
O

UR
TH

O
US

E

MARTIN ST

58



52

T
T

DDDDDDDDDDDD
EEEE

SSSIII
GGG

NNNN
 CCCC

OOOO
NNN

CCC
EEE

PPP
TTTT

SSSSSSS 
- 

OOOOOOOO
PPPP

TTT
IIIOOO

NNNN
 222222222

PA
R

K
IN

G
 O

P
T

IO
N

TW
O

-W
AY

 T
RA

FF
IC

 W
IT

H
 P

A
RA

LL
E

L 
PA

RK
IN

G

CU
T 

O
FF

 P
A

RK
IN

G
 L

O
T 

AC
CE

SS
 F

RO
M

 C
IR

CL
E

BR
IC

K
 S

IT
TI

N
G

 A
RE

A

A
N

G
LE

D
 P

A
RK

IN
G

, P
E

RV
IO

U
S 

PA
V

IN
G

 (6
 S

PA
CE

S)
A

N
G

LE
D

 P
A

RK
IN

G
, P

E
RV

IO
U

S 
PA

V
IN

G
 (9

 S
PA

CE
S)

BR
IC

K
 S

IT
TI

N
G

 A
RE

A

PE
D

E
ST

RI
A

N
 R

E
FU

G
E

 IS
LA

N
D

W
ID

E
N

E
D

 C
O

N
CR

E
TE

 S
ID

E
W

A
LK

RE
D

U
CE

D
 L

A
N

E
 W

ID
TH

 (2
0’

)

A
N

G
LE

D
 P

A
RK

IN
G

, P
E

RV
IO

U
S 

PA
V

IN
G

 (8
 S

PA
CE

S)

ST
A

M
PE

D
 A

SP
H

A
LT

 C
RO

SS
W

A
LK

RE
D

U
CE

D
 L

A
N

E
 W

ID
TH

 (2
6’

)

PA
V

E
D

 S
H

O
U

LD
E

R

M
C

RE
YN

O
LD

S 
ST

M
O

N
RO

E 
ST

HI
ST

O
RI

C
 

C
O

UR
TH

O
US

E

MARTIN ST

59



53

T
T

DDDDDDDDDDDD
EEEE

SSSIII
GGG

NNNN
 CCCC

OOOO
NNN

CCC
EEE

PPP
TTTT

SSSSSSS 
- 

OOOOOOOO
PPPP

TTT
IIIOOO

NNNN
 333333333

H
Y

B
R

ID
 O

P
T

IO
N

TW
O

-W
AY

 T
RA

FF
IC

 W
IT

H
 P

A
RA

LL
E

L 
PA

RK
IN

G

PA
RK

IN
G

 L
O

T 
AC

CE
SS

BR
IC

K
 S

IT
TI

N
G

 A
RE

A

A
N

G
LE

D
 P

A
RK

IN
G

, C
O

N
CR

E
TE

 (6
 S

PA
CE

S)
A

N
G

LE
D

 P
A

RK
IN

G
, C

O
N

CR
E

TE
 (3

 S
PA

CE
S)

A
N

G
LE

D
 P

A
RK

IN
G

, C
O

N
CR

E
TE

 (4
 S

PA
CE

S)

PE
D

E
ST

RI
A

N
 R

E
FU

G
E

 IS
LA

N
D

W
ID

E
N

E
D

 C
O

N
CR

E
TE

 S
ID

E
W

A
LK

RE
D

U
CE

D
 L

A
N

E
 W

ID
TH

 (2
0’

)

BR
IC

K
 S

IT
TI

N
G

 /
 D

IN
IN

G
 A

RE
A

 

ST
A

M
PE

D
 A

SP
H

A
LT

 C
RO

SS
W

A
LK

RE
D

U
CE

D
 L

A
N

E
 W

ID
TH

 (2
6’

)

PL
A

N
TI

N
G

 A
RE

A

M
C

RE
YN

O
LD

S 
ST

M
O

N
RO

E 
ST

HI
ST

O
RI

C
 

C
O

UR
TH

O
US

E

MARTIN ST

TW
O

-W
AY

 T
RA

FF
IC

 W
IT

H
 P

A
RA

LL
E

L 
PA

RK
IN

G

PA
RK

IN
G

LO
T

AC
CE

SS

BR
IC

K
 S

IT
TI

N
G

 A
RE

A

WW
ID

E
N

E
D

 C
O

N
CR

E
TE

SI
D

E
W

A
LK

AA
N

G
LE

D
 P

A
RK

IN
G

, C
O

N
CR

E
TE

 (6
 S

PA
CE

S)

PA
RK

IN
G

LO
T

AC
CE

SS

A
N

G
LE

D
 P

A
RK

IN
G

, C
O

N
CR

E
TE

 (3
 S

PA
CE

S)

PA
RK

IN
G

 L
O

T 
AC

CE
SS

AA
N

G
LE

D
 P

A
RK

IN
G

, C
O

N
CR

E
TE

 (4
 S

PA
CE

S)

M
O

N
RO

E 
ST

RE
D

U
CE

D
 L

A
N

E
 W

ID
TH

(2
0’

)

BR
IC

K
 S

IT
TI

N
G

 /
 D

IN
IN

G
 A

RE
A

 

K
ST

A
M

PE
D

A
SP

H
A

LT
 C

RO
SS

W
A

LK

RE
D

U
CE

D
LA

N
E

W
ID

TH
(2

6’
)

RE
D

U
CE

D
LA

N
E

W
ID

TH
(2

6
) A

PL
A

N
TI

N
G

 A
RE

A

RE
D

U
CE

D
 L

A
N

E
 W

ID
TH

 (2
6

)

60



54

D
E

SI
G

N
 C

O
N

C
E

P
T

S

ST
R

E
E

T
SC

A
P

E
 O

P
T

IO
N

 “
A

”

ST
E

E
L 

BE
N

CH

ST
RE

E
T 

LI
G

H
T

TR
A

SH
 R

E
CE

PT
AC

LE

PL
A

N
TI

N
G

 A
RE

A

RA
IS

E
D

 C
U

RB

PL
A

N
TI

N
G

 A
RE

A

BR
IC

K
 B

A
N

D
IN

G

CO
N

CR
E

TE
 S

ID
E

W
A

LK
 W

/ 
SC

O
RI

N
G

 JO
IN

TS

BR
IC

K
 B

A
N

D
IN

G

CO
N

CR
E

TE
 S

ID
E

W
A

LK
 W

/ 
SC

O
RI

N
G

 JO
IN

TS

PA
RA

LL
E

L 
PA

RK
IN

G

ST
RE

E
T 

TR
E

E

ST
E

E
L 

BE
N

CH

61



55D
E

SI
G

N
 C

O
N

C
E

P
T

S

ST
R

E
E

T
SC

A
P

E
 O

P
T

IO
N

 “
B

”

ST
E

E
L 

BE
N

CH

ST
RE

E
T 

LI
G

H
T

TR
A

SH
 R

E
CE

PT
AC

LE

PL
A

N
TI

N
G

 A
RE

A

RA
IS

E
D

 C
U

RB

PL
A

N
TI

N
G

 A
RE

A

BR
IC

K
 B

A
N

D
IN

G

CO
N

CR
E

TE
 S

ID
E

W
A

LK
 W

/ 
SC

O
RI

N
G

 JO
IN

TS

SP
E

CI
A

LT
Y

 P
AV

IN
G

CO
N

CR
E

TE
 S

ID
E

W
A

LK
 W

/ 
SC

O
RI

N
G

 JO
IN

TS

PA
RA

LL
E

L 
PA

RK
IN

G

ST
RE

E
T 

TR
E

E

RA
IS

E
D

 B
RI

CK
 C

U
RB

 A
T 

TR
E

E
 B

E
D

62



56

D
E

SI
G

N
 C

O
N

C
E

P
T

S
ST

R
E

E
T

SC
A

P
E

 O
P

T
IO

N
 “

C
”

ST
E

E
L 

BE
N

CH

ST
RE

E
T 

LI
G

H
T

TR
A

SH
 R

E
CE

PT
AC

LE

PL
A

N
TI

N
G

 A
RE

A

RA
IS

E
D

 C
U

RB

PL
A

N
TI

N
G

 A
RE

A

BR
IC

K
 B

A
N

D
IN

G

CO
N

CR
E

TE
 S

ID
E

W
A

LK
 W

/ 
SC

O
RI

N
G

 JO
IN

TS

CO
N

CR
E

TE
 W

/ 
LA

RG
E

R 
SC

O
RI

N
G

 P
AT

TE
RN

CO
N

CR
E

TE
 S

ID
E

W
A

LK
 W

/ 
SC

O
RI

N
G

 JO
IN

TS

PA
RA

LL
E

L 
PA

RK
IN

G

ST
RE

E
T 

TR
E

E

RA
IS

E
D

 B
RI

CK
 C

U
RB

 A
T 

TR
E

E
 B

E
D

63



64



 

 

MEMORANDUM  

 
Date:  October 3, 2024 
 
To:   Planning Board 
 
From:    Jennifer Hunt, Town Planner 
 

Subject: CZ-06-24: Conditional Zoning Request for Charles Steadwell for 405 Monroe Street 

approximately .51 acres of land located at PARID 00000357, B-2 (Central Business Fringe 

District) to B-2-CZ (Central Business Fringe District- Conditional Zoning); Petitioner: Charles 

Steadwell 

              
 

I. SUMMARY OF APPLICATION REQUEST: 

The applicant and owner, Charles Steadwell of 405 Monroe Street, parcel 00000357, would like to 
propose a small car lot. This is a permitted use. This parcel is approximately half an acre in the B-2 
“Central Business District Fringe” zoning district. Mr. Steadwell has been working with Kevin Lindsay, 
an engineer with Crawford Design Company, to design a small car lot. Mr. Steadwell is requesting 
Conditional Zoning to ask for relief from building a sidewalk along East Barrett, because there is no 
curb and gutter there and he believes there is insufficient space on the lot to install a safe sidewalk. 
Also, Mr. Steadwell is requesting an exception to allow for crepe myrtles on Monroe Street to be 
counted as buffer bushes even though they are in the right of way. Please view Attachment 1 for the 
Site Plan and Attachment 2 for the Exhibits provided by the applicant.  
  
 

II. PROJECT INFORMATION: 

1. PARID: 00000357 PIN: 857707792859 
 

2. Applicant:   Charles Steadwell 
 

3. Owner:    Charles and Carmen Steadwell 
 

4. Long-Range Plan Designation:  
This future area of this land appears to be Commercial, per the adopted 2040 Land Use Plan.  
 

5. Current Zoning:  
The B-2 district is primarily designed to provide roadside uses which will best accommodate the 
needs of the motoring public and of businesses demanding high volume traffic. This district 
includes the Central Business District fringe area.

65



   Figure 1: Site Map outlined in red.  

 

66



 
 

III. APPLICATION REVIEW: 

When reviewing an application for conditional zoning, the Planning Board shall consider and be 
guided by Article 3. Below is highlighted Section 100.32, Section 100.42 and Section 100.44 (4) as set 
forth in UDO: 
 
Sec. 100.32 Planning Board – Powers and Duties 
In addition to its specific duties set forth in this and other Town Ordinances and policies, the Planning 
Board shall have the following powers and duties: 

1. To make studies of the Town and surrounding areas; 
2. To determine objectives to be sought in the development of the Town; 
3. To propose and recommend plans for achieving these objectives; 
4. To develop and recommend to the Board of Commissions policies, ordinances, administrative 

procedures and other means for carrying out plans in a coordinated and efficient manner; 
5. To advise the Board of Commissioners concerning the use and amendment of means for 

carrying out plans; 
6. To exercise such functions in the administration and enforcement of various means for 

carrying 
out plans as may be assigned by this article or other ordinances of the Town; and 

7. To perform other related duties as may be assigned by this article or other ordinances. 
 
Section 100.42 Types of Amendments: 
Amendments may be to the text of the ordinance or take the form of map amendments, often known 
as rezoning. The Town of Carthage recognizes three types of amendments.  

1. Text Amendments. This type of amendment is used when a party chooses to modify the 
actual text of the ordinance. This is a legislative decision by the Board of Commissioners.  

2. Map Amendments. This type of amendment is used when a party chooses to change a 
zoning district from one type to another. Often known as a straight rezoning, it recognizes 
that the change in district allows for all uses allowed within a given zoning district. It cannot 
be conditioned in any way. This is a legislative decision by the Board of Commissioners.  

3. Conditional Zoning. Conditional Zoning is an amendment process that is both a map 
amendment and a text amendment. It is a legislative decision by the Board of 
Commissioners, but it allows for the placement of conditions and/or limits on the approval. 

 
Section 100.44 (4) Planning Board 
All proposed Development Ordinance amendments must be given review by the Planning Board for 
a recommendation to the Board of Commissioners. They are not required to conduct a public 
hearing, but 
they are encouraged to accept public input. The Planning Board shall evaluate all proposals for 
consistency with any adopted long-range plans and adopt a statement of consistency with said plans 
before voting to recommend approval or denial of the request.  

 
A. Staff Comments:  

Jennifer Hunt, Town Planner, has met with the applicant and their engineer at the Technical Review 
Committee (TRC) meeting on June 6, 2024. At the TRC meeting, sidewalks are required on both East 
Barrett Street and Monroe Street. Per Unified Development Ordinance (UDO) Section 100.57 (10) it 
says, “Sidewalks for Existing Lots of Record: New construction on existing lots of record shall install 
sidewalks built to Town of Carthage standards when located on a block containing sidewalks or if 
located on a major or minor collector, or principal or minor arterial road in accordance with 
NCDOT’s functional road classification.”  
 
East Barrett Street is a minor collector road which leads to Monroe Street a major collector. Due to 
this property being in the Downtown area, the Town of Carthage is doing its best to connect all 67



areas of the community for people who walk and bike as well as drive. East Barrett Street requires a 
sidewalk. However, the applicant is applying for conditional zoning, stating there is insufficient space 
and would like to maintain the buffer, landscaping and not build the sidewalk along East Barrett 
Street.  
 
Also, at the TRC meeting, it was noted that this is a double frontage lot, therefore the minimum yard 
requirements for front yards apply along both street fronts. The front yard setback in the B-2 zoning 
district is 25 feet.  
 
The applicant is also requesting the three crepe myrtles along Monroe Street be allowed to be 
counted as buffers even though they are within the right of way. Per Section 100.60 (2) it says, 
“Landscaping requirements are stated in terms of the width of the buffer yard and the number of 
plant units required per each one hundred (100) linear feet of buffer yard. The widths listed must be 
maintained along all street rights-of-way and along all property lines. The Lot Size (Less than 25,000 
sq. ft.) requires a Buffer Yard Width of 4 feet and the number of plant units per 100 linear feet of the 
buffer yard is 4 shrubs or trees. The approximate linear feet along E Barrett Street is 400 feet, 
therefore 4 shrubs or trees which are not in the right of way. The approximate linear feet along 
Monroe Street are approximately 400 linear feet, therefore 4 shrubs or trees as well, which are not 
in the right of way.  
 
I have advised the engineer that visibility at each intersection is very important per Section 100.57 
(16). The one-way driveway proposed that spills onto East Barrett Street is important to provide 
visibility for drivers traveling along Monroe Street as well as those exiting the driveway. The people 
driving cars need to be able to see clearly those coming down East Barrett Street as well as the 
driveway of the proposed project. Please view Attachment 1 for the site plan.  
 
All standards from Section 100.57 General and Dimensional standards shall apply to this project, 
except for the conditions mentioned below for the conditional zoning. The applicant is proposing a 
small car lot, with 17 spaces total, which is permitted use in the Town of Carthage of “Motor Vehicle 
Sales” in the B-2 zoning district.  
 
Please view Attachment 2 for the TRC Comments and the responses from the applicant. The 
applicant is requesting the following conditions:  
 
1. Our UDO recommends sidewalks on dual road frontage; however, the applicant is asking not to 

build a sidewalk on E Barrett Street.  
 

2.  Our UDO recommends no landscaping in the right of way; however, the applicant is asking to 
keep 16 crepe myrtles to be counted as a buffer even though they are in the right of way.  

 
IV. ATTACHMENTS PROVIDED BY THE APPLICANT: 

1. Proposed Site Plan 
2. Exhibit 

 
V. PLANNING BOARD ACTION: 

 
The Planning Board shall evaluate all proposals for consistency with any adopted long-range plans 
and adopt a statement of consistency with said plans before voting to recommend approval or 
denial of the request. All proposed Development Ordinance amendments must be given review by 
the Planning Board for a recommendation to the Board of Commissioners. They are not required to 
conduct a public hearing, but they are encouraged to accept public input, per UDO Section 100.42 
and 100.44.  
 

68



The Planning Board shall first adopt a Resolution of Consistency with the adopted Land Use Plan and 
other long-range plans then the Planning Board shall vote on the petition (two motions required). 
The Resolution of Consistency may take one of three forms consistent with N.C.G.S 160D-604(d); 
605(a); 701. 

 

LUP CONSISTENCY MOTION (1st Required Motion) 

I move to:  
 

OPTION 1 

Approve CZ-06-24 and describe its consistency with the adopted Land Use Plan.  
 
or   
 

OPTION 2 

Reject CZ-06-24 and describe its inconsistency with the adopted Land Use Plan. 
 
or 
 

OPTION 3 

Approve CZ-06-24 and deem it a modification of the adopted Land Use Plan. The Planning Board 
believes this action taken is reasonable and in the public interest because…...  
             

             

             

    

 

PETITION MOTION (2ND Required Motion) 

And, therefore, I move to: 
 

OPTION 1 

Approve CZ-06-24 as written and presented. 
 
or 

 

OPTION 2 

Approve CZ-06-24 with the following conditions…..  
             

             

             

    

 

(Option 3 on next page) 
OPTION 3 

Deny CZ-06-24 for the following reasons….. 

69



             

             

             

    

 
 
 
 
 

 

70



 
TOWN OF CARTHAGE  

PLANNING BOARD 

STATEMENT OF LAND USE PLAN CONSISTENCY  

FOR THE CONDITIONAL ZONING AT 405 MONROE STREET (PARCEL ID #00000357) FROM B-2 TO 

B-2 CZ 

 

 

WHEREAS, amendments to the Town of Carthage Unified Development Ordinance have been proposed, 

which amendments are identified as follows:   

 

NOW THEREFORE, the Planning Board of the Town of Carthage resolves as follows: 

 

Section 1. The Planning Board concludes that the above-described amendment(s) are/are not consistent with 

the Town of Carthage 2040 Land Use Plan, as amended based on the following: 

 

Goal 1: Preserve and celebrated small-town community roots. 

Goal 2: Coordinated, intentional, and well-planned growth and development. 

Goal 3: Protection of open space and critical natural features. 

Goal 4: Ample employment opportunities and support for business development. 

Goal 5: Vibrant commercial areas that provide a variety of goods, services, entertainment options, 

and amenities. 

Goal 6: A well-connected multi-modal transportation system. 

Goal 7: High-quality parks and recreational facilities that are accessible to all. 

Goal 8: Protected and preserve historic and cultural resources. 

Goal 9: Adequate supply and high quality of housing. 

Goal 10: Informed, engaged, and active residents that represent a variety of neighborhoods and 

citizen groups.  

Goal 11: Regulations that are consistent with the Town’s vision. 

Goal 12: Cultural, educational, recreational, and other amenities that contribute to the quality of 

life of Carthage’s citizens.  

 

 
 

 The applicant and owner, Charles Steadwell of 405 Monroe Street, parcel 00000357, would like to propose 

a small car lot. Mr. Steadwell is requesting to not construct a sidewalk and keep the current landscaping.  

 

 

Section 2.  Please state the Planning Board’s reasonings/findings for the approval or disapproval of this 

consistency statement based on the above selected goals. 

              

              

              

              

              

               

 

 

71



 

 

 

Section 2. The Planning Board concludes that the above-described amendment(s) are/are not reasonable 

and in the public interest as they do/do not fulfill a direct objective of the Land Use Plan.     
 

 This statement adopted the    day of _______________, 2024. 

 

        

     

    

 

             

       Elizabeth Futrell, Planning Board Chair 

 

 

 

      

Jamie Sandoval, Clerk to the Planning Board 

 

 

72



MONROE STREET
(PUBLIC 60' ROW)

E. BARRETT STREET(PUBLIC )

552

550

54
8

546

544

542

540

538

552

550

548

546

54
4

54
2

540

53
8

MONROE STREET
(PUBLIC 60' ROW)

E. BARRETT STREET(PUBLIC )

552

550

54
8

546

544

542

540

538

552

550

548

546

54
4

54
2

540

53
8

N

SITE NOTES

ADDITIONAL NOTES

V I C I N I T Y  M A P (N.T.S.)

Full Scale:  Horiz.: 1" = 20'
Half Scale: Horiz.: 1" = 40'

0 20 40

0 --- mm-dd-yy Description

C2.0

INSTALL CONCRETE PER TOWN OF CARTHAGE STANDARDS. ALL CONCRETE
TO BE MINIMUM NCDOT CLASS B, 6" MIN THICKNESS.
 APPROXIMATELY 1,800 SF

 INSTALL ADA PARKING AND SIGN ( CDC DETAIL 1.1805)

INSTALL GRAVEL PARKING AREAS. ALL GRAVEL TO BE MIN 6" AGGREGATE
BASE COURSE TO NCDOT STANDARDS.  PROOFROLL SUBGRADE AND
SURFACE WITH WITNESS BY ENGINEER.  APPROXIMATELY 9,300 SF

3

1

2

Know what's

R

Parcel ID:00000357
PIN:857707792859
STEADWELL, CHARLES
STEADWELL, CARMEN
150 REDGRASS LANE
CARTHAGE, NC 28327
Deed Book:6107
Deed Page:399
LRK:357

21,900 sf / 0.50 acres
B-2 Lot Standards:
-Min Size 10,000 sf
-Front Setback=25'
-Side Setback=0'
-Rear Setback=15'
-Max height=35'
-Max BUA=NA
-BUA=6,394 SF, 29%
Motor vehicle sales is a permitted use

BOUNDARY AND TOPO FROM MOORE CO. GIS

NC
 G

RI
D 

NA
D 

83

NC
 G

RI
D 

NA
VD

 88

CARTHAGE, N.C.

N
C

 2
2

PI
N

EH
U

RS
T 

AV
E.RO

CKI
NGHAM

 ST
.

MONROE ST.

E. BARRETT ST.

VASS-CARTHAGE RD.

N
C

 1
5-

50
1

SITE

Project Manager:
CAD Technician:
Reviewed / Approved By:
Project Number:

C
H

AR
LE

S 
ST

EA
D

W
EL

L

M
O

TO
R 

VE
H

IC
LE

 S
AL

ES
C

AR
TH

AG
E,

 N
C

FAYETTEV I L LE , N .C

.

C
R

AW
FO

RD DES I GN
COMPA

N
Y

N

O
R T H C A R O L I N

A

RE
G

IS
TE

RE
D

LA
ND

SCAPE ARCHITECTURE
CORPORAT

ION

FAYETTEV I L LE , N .C

.

C
R

AW
FO

RD DES I GN
COMPA

N
Y

NORT H CA RO L I NA

RE
G

IS
TE

RE
D

ENGINEERING CORPORAT
ION

Crawford Design Company Copyright 2024 All drawings, specifications and designs prepared by Crawford Design Company are instruments of service and shall remain the property of Crawford Design Company. The Owner or any other parties shall not use the work on this or any project except by a proper agreement and appropriate compensation.

Landscape Architecture  ¨  Fayetteville, NC
Civil Engineering  ¨  Southern Pines, NC

KSL

06/18/2024

Voice: 910-725-1107

RFN

320 LF 5' Wide Sidewalk
4' landscape buffer with 6 trees
or 16 bushes (or a combination of)
(REQUEST 16 EX. CREPE MYRTLES
BE ALLOWED TO COUNT AS BUFFER
EVEN THOUGH THEY ARE IN THE RIGHT OF WAY)

9 9'x19' Parking spaces with curb stops.
-1 ADA (Handicap)
-3 Salesman/Customer
-5 Used cars

Sales Office with Bathroom.
By Owner.  Shown as 20' x 10'

 25
'

FR
ON

T
SE

TB
AC

K

15
'

RE
AR

SE
TB

AC
K

9,300 SF OF GRAVEL PARKING
(6" ABC STONE TO NCDOT STANDARDS)

NEW DO NOT ENTER SIGN

1 1

1

2 2 2

1

3

SIGHT TRIANGLES (TYP)
(15' x 70')

REQUEST SIDEWALK NOT BE REQUIRED ON
E. BARRETT BECAUSE THERE IS NO CURB
AND GUTTER AND STEEP SLOPE MAKE CONSTRUCTION
OF A SAFE SIDEWALK DIFFICULT IF NOT IMPOSSIBLE

 INSTALL ADA CONNECTION AT DRIVEWAY ( CDC DETAIL SHEET)4

44 4 4

4

 INSTALL 5' CONCRETE SIDEWALK ( CDC DETAIL 1.2517)5

55

PLANT THREE (3) OCTOBER GLORY RED MAPLES (TYP)

Plant List Reference Table

Classification Key Common Name Botanical Name Quantity Type / Size Notes

Canopy Trees October Glory Red Maple Acer rubrum 'Octobr Glory' 3 3' cal., 8' ht. minimum. Healthy, Well Branched, Full Foliage
TOTAL

CANOPY
TREES

3

REMOVE ALL VEGITATION
WITHIN SITE TRIANGLE.

13

THREE CANOPY TREES SHALL BE ADDED.

33.50 ft
14.00 ft

14.00 ft

13.50 ft

3
1
.5

0
 f
t

5
2

.7
5

 f
t

NOTE: OWNER IS ASKING FOR TWO CONDITIONS FOR THIS CONDITIONAL ZONING:

1. RELIEF FROM SIDEWALK REQUIREMENT FOR EAST BARRETT BECAUSE THE EXISTING
ROAD DOES NOT HAVE CURB AND GUTTER OR DRAIN LINES. THE CURB IS NEEDED TO
PROVIDE SAFE SEPARATION FROM FOR PEDESTRIANS FROM TRAFFIC.  THE DRAIN
LINES ARE NEEDED BECAUSE THE ROAD CURRENTLY DRAINS TO THE ROADSIDE DITCH
AND A SIDEWALK WOULD BLOCK THIS UNLESS CURB INLETS AND PIPE WERE
INSTALLED.  THERE ARE ALSO TELEPHONE LINES AND STRUCTURES IN CLOSE
PROXIMITY TO THE ROAD.  THESE ISSUES WILL MAKE IT DIFFICULT TO CONSTRUCT
SIDEWALKS ALONG BENNETT UNLESS MAJOR IMPROVMENTS ARE MADE TO THE
EXISTING ROAD.

2. RELIEF FROM REQUIRMENT THAT LANDSCAPE SCREENING IN FRONT BE PLACED
OUTSIDE THE RIGHT OF WAY.  THERE ARE SEVERAL EXISTING CREPE MYRTLES THAT
ARE BETWEEN THE RIGHT OF WAY AND WHERE THE PROPOSED SIDEWALK ON
MONROE STREET WOULD BE BUILT.  OWNER WOULD LIKE TO KEEP THESE ATTRACTIVE
BUSHES.

73



Image capture: Jul 2024 © 2024 Google

Carthage, North Carolina

 Google Street View

Jul 2024 See more dates

506 NC-27

View from East

74

https://www.google.com/streetview
https://www.google.com/streetview
kevin.lindsay
Callout
Note there are no obstacles from the entrance on Bennett and Monroe 



Image capture: Jul 2024 © 2024 Google

Carthage, North Carolina

 Google Street View

Jul 2024 See more dates

406 NC-24

view from west property line

75

https://www.google.com/streetview
https://www.google.com/streetview
kevin.lindsay
Text Box
This is the view from the western property line on Monroe.Note: Crepe Myrtles we are asking to use as a buffer even though they are in right of way.



Image capture: Jun 2024 © 2024 Google

Carthage, North Carolina

 Google Street View

Jun 2024 See more dates

207 NC-24

Existing sidewalk on Monroe St west of site

76

https://www.google.com/streetview
https://www.google.com/streetview
kevin.lindsay
Text Box
Existing sidewalk west of proposed project on Monroe St.



Image capture: Feb 2024 © 2024 Google

Carthage, North Carolina

 Google Street View

Feb 2024 See more dates

409 E Barrett St

E. Barrett St

77

https://www.google.com/streetview
https://www.google.com/streetview
kevin.lindsay
Text Box
Adding sidewalk to E. Barrett will be difficult:-No curb and gutter exists to safely separate traffic from pedestrians.  -A minimum of  7.5 feet would be needed for NCDOT standard curb and gutter and 5' sidewalk.-Due to drainage issues, would also have to install storm drains (curb inlets and pipes) along E. Barrett



Image capture: Feb 2024 © 2024 Google

Carthage, North Carolina

 Google Street View

Feb 2024 See more dates

403 E Barrett St

Note proximity of pole to road

78

https://www.google.com/streetview
https://www.google.com/streetview
kevin.lindsay
Callout
Note proximity of pole to road.

kevin.lindsay
Text Box
Note road drains to swales. Would have to place sidewalk in back of swale (which would provide separation from traffic) or install curb and gutter and storm drain.



 

 

MEMORANDUM  

 
Date:  October 3, 2024 
 
To:   Planning Board 
 
From:    Jamie Sandoval, Clerk to the Planning Board 
 

Subject: 2025 Planning Board Schedule; Petitioner: Town of Carthage Planning Staff 

              

 
I. SUMMARY OF APPLICATION REQUEST: 

This is the 2025 schedule for Planning Board meetings. Planning staff propose start time of the 
Planning Board meetings are 6:00 p.m. and schedule no monthly meeting in December.  
 

 

January 2, 2024 
February 6, 2024 

March 6, 2024 
April 3, 2024 
May 1, 2024 
June 5, 2024 
July 3, 2024 

August 7, 2024 
September 4, 2024 

October 2, 2024 
November 6, 2024 

December: No Meeting 
 
 

 

PETITION MOTION 

And, therefore, I move to: 
 

OPTION 1 

Approve 2025 Planning Board meeting schedule and the meeting time as written and presented. 
 
or 

 

OPTION  

Approve 2025 Planning Board meeting schedule and the meeting time with the following revisions…..  
             

             

            ______ 

 
79



OPTION 3 

Deny 2025. Planning Board meeting schedule and the meeting time for the following reasons…..  
             

             

            ______ 

 

 

80




